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This Annual Report is dedicated to: 

James Colgate Cleveland 1920-1995 
U.S. Congressman- Second District 1963-1980 

N.H. State Senator 1951-1963 

Stuart F. Sidmore, Jr. 1944-1995 
Police Chief 1990-1995 

Emergency Management Director 1978-1995 



TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

Incorporated June 25, 1779 Anno Domini 

Total Area 16,192 Acres, Land Area 14,144 Acres 

Water Area 2,048 Acres 

Population (1950 Census) 1484 

Population (1960 Census) 1738 

Population (1970 Census) 2236 

Population (1980 Census) 2893 

Population (1990 Census) 3180 

Second Congressional District 

Second Councilor District 

Fifth State Senatorial District 

United States Senators 

Judd Gregg of Greenfield through 1998 

Robert Smith of Tuftonboro through 1996 

Representative in Congress 

Charles Bass of Peterborough through 1996 

State Senator of New Hampshire 

Jim Reubens of Hanover through 1996 

Representatives to General Court 

Peter Crowell of New London through 1996 

Alf E. Jacobson of New London through 1996 

Avis Nichols of Warner through 1996 

County Commissioner 

Stuart D. Trachy of Franklin through 1996 

Executive Councilor 

Peter J. Spaulding of Hopkinton through 1996 
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NEW LONDON TOWN 

OFFICIALS AS OF 12/31/95 

ELECTED TOWN OFFICIALS 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN: 

James W. Moreland, Chair, 1996 

April D. Whittaker, 1997 

Harold W. Buker, Jr., 1998 

TOWN CLERK: 

Lois E. Marshall, 1997 

~ TREASURER: 

David Eberly, 1997 

MODERATOR: 

Hilary P. Cleveland, 1996 

TRUSTEES OF THE TRUST FUND: 

Richard Brady, Chair, 1996 

Shelby Blunt, 1997 

Marty Feins, 1998 

BUDGET COMMITTEE: 

Robert Foose, Chair 1997 

Barbara Green, 1996 

William Kidder, Jr., 1996 

Ralph Marshall, 1996 

William Berger, 1997 

Sue Clough, 1997 

Jon Barselle, 1998 

David Eberly, 1998 

Mark Kaplan, 1998 

Jim Moreland (Selectmen’s Rep.) 

FIRE CHIEF: 
Walter Partridge, 1996 

SEWER COMMISSIONERS: 

John Cummings, 1996 

Ann Beardsley, 1997 

William Faccone, Jr., 1998 

CEMETERY COMMISSIONERS: 

Walton Chadwick, Chair, 1997 

Marion C. Hafner, 1996 

Charles Hafner, 1998 

SUPERVISORS OF THE CHECKLIST: 

Dana M. Stanley, Chair, 1996 

Virginia Soule, 1998 

Sonja Jacobson, 2000 

TRACY MEM. LIBRARY TRUSTEES: 

Robert T. Wallace, Chair, 1996 

Michelle Feins, 1996 

Sheri Ensign, 1997 

John Flynn, 1997 

Beatson Wallace, 1997 

Hardy Hasenfuss, 1998 

Joan Sweeney, 1998 

KRSD SCHOOL BOARD: 

Erle Blanchard, 1996 

Barbara Brown, 1998 

KRSD BUDGET COMMITTEE: 

Dan Allen, 1996 

Howard Hoke, 1998 

APPOINTED TOWN OFFICIALS 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR: 

Ilene M. Healy, 1996 

FINANCIAL & PERSONNEL ASSIST.: 

Sallie Johnson 

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY: 

Amy A. Rankins 

TAX COLLECTOR: 

Lois E. Marshall, 1996 

DEPUTY TOWN CLERK/TAX COLLECTOR.: 

Linda Hardy, 1996 

WELFARE OFFICER: 

Alf Jacobson, 1996 



HEALTH OFFICER: 

Donald F. Bent, 1997 

ASSISTANT HEALTH OFFICER: 

Donald Lamson, 1996 

NEW LONDON POLICE DEPT: 

David J. Seastrand, Chief 

Christopher Currier, Officer 

Donald W. Kimtis, Officer 

Edward Kinzer, Officer 

David White, Officer 

David Zuger, Officer 

Julie Saxby, Administrative Secretary 

Harry Barrett, Officer/Part-Time 

Howard Eaton, Officer/Part-Time 

NEW LONDON DISPATCH: 

Ben Cushing, Dispatch Supervisor 

Greg Barthol, Dispatcher 

John Cunningham, Dispatcher 

Matthew Bergeron, P/T Dispatcher 

Jason Byrne, P/T Dispatcher 

Kimberly Edgecomb, P/T Dispatcher 

Jeffrey Reed, P/T Dispatcher 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT: 

Richard Lee, Road Agent, 1996 

Robert Harrington, Foreman/Maint. III 

Karen Welch, Maint. II 

Keith Page, Maint. II 

Thomas Patten, Maint. II 

Calvin Rockwood, Maint.I  , 

TRANSFER STATION: 

Robert Lee, Supervisor 

Joe Cadogan, Recycling Attendant 

Robert Greene, Recycling Attendant 

NEW LONDON SEWER DEPT.: 

Douglas Gay, Superintendent 

Robert Thorp, Jr., Collection Operator 

Ann Beardsley, Admin. Bookkeeper 

EMERGENCY MGMT. COMMITTEE: 

Robert Nelson, Director, 1996 

Lois Rockwood, Deputy Director, 1996 

Ben Cushing 

Nancy Erickson 

Richard Lee 

Walter Partridge 

David Seastrand 

Ilene M. Healy 

TREE WARDEN: 

Robert Fraley, 1996 

CONSERVATION COMMISSION: 

Terence Dancy, Chair, 1996 

Edward Parkhurst, M.D., 1996 

Fred W. Sladen, 1996 

Peter Stanley, 1997 

Sue Ellen Andrews, 1998 

Karen Ebel, 1998 

Ruth White, 1998 

PLANNING BOARD: 

Laurie DiClerico, Chair, 1998 

Suzanne Jesseman, 1996 

James Clancy, 1997 

Sydney Crook, 1997 

Karen Ebel, 1998 

Robert Gray, 1998 

April Whittaker (Selectmen’s Rep.) 

ZONING BD OF ADJUSTMENT: 

Elizabeth Herrick, Chair, 1997 

Sue Clough, 1996 

Ann Jones, 1996 

William Green, Jr., 1997 

Brian Prescott, 1998 

Robert Foose (Alternate), 1997 

Frank Gordon (Alternate), 1997 

Joan Bucklin (Alternate), 1998 

RECREATION COMMISSION: 

K.C. Wright, Chair, 1996 

Timothy VanBlommesteyn, 1996 

Toni Berns, 1997 

Robert Bell, 1998 

Shari Goldberg-Keenan, 1998 

TOWN HISTORY & ARCHIVES 

Walton W. Chadwick, 1996 

Margaret Moreland, Archivist, 1996 

Constance Granger, 1997 

Robert M. Lovely, Jr, 1997 

Doris M. Cutter, 1998 

Lindsay M. Collins, 1998 

Arrolyn H. Vernon, 1998 

NH/VT SOLID WASTE DISTRICT: 

Bryan Jones, 1996 

Ilene M. Healy, 1996 

Mark Kaplan (Alternate), 1996 



TRACY MEMORIAL LIBRARY: 

Ginny Foose, Library Director 

Susanne Filkins, Library Assistant 

Raymond Heath, Custodian 

Timathy Poh, Children’s Librarian 

Sally Davis, Circulation Assistant 

Edith Garner, Children’s Library Assist. 

Linda Miller, General Library Assistant 

Beth Perkins, General Library Assistant 

Matthew Reilein, Student Aid 

Daniel Taylor, Student Aid 

FOREST FIRE WARDENS: 

_ Peter Stanley, Warden 

Jay Bewley, Deputy Warden 

James Granger, Deputy Warden 

Laurids Lauridsen, Deputy Warden 

Walter Partridge, Deputy Warden 

BOARD OF FIRE ENGINEERS: 

Peter Stanley, 1996 

Dave Eberly, 1997 

James Granger, 1998 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMM: 

Sydney Crook, 1996 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE : 

Verne Barrett, 1996 

Erle Blanchard, 1996 

Stephen Ensign, 1996 

John MacKenna, 1996 

Thomas Miller, 1996 

Carolyn Pierzchala, 1996 

Deirdre Sheerr, 1996 

Dennis Aufranc, 1997 

Linda Brenner, 1997 

Joan Bucklin, 1997 

Shaun Carroll, 1997 

Francis Evans, 1997 

Sharon Lavigne, 1997 

John Manley, 1997 

Tom Cottrill, 1998 

James Cricenti, 1998 

John Cummings, 1998 

Michelle Feins, 1998 

Mark Kaplan, 1998 

Steve Mendelson, 1998 

Harry Snow, 1998 

FIRE DEPARTMENT PERSONNEL: 

Walter Partridge, Chief 

Shaun Caisse, Deputy Chief 

Nancy Erickson, Captain 

Bruce Sanborn, Ist Lieutenant 

Christian Hoffman, 2nd Lieutenant 

Jason Lyon, 3rd Lieutenant 

David Gilland, 4th Lieutenant 

Edgar Broadhead, Clerk 

Harry Barrett 

Robert Barrett 

Robert Buckley 

Jay Bewley 

Amy Carrier 

Sean Cushing 

David Eberly 

Eric Ensign 

Stephen Ensign 

Frank Finger 

Courtney Heath 

Charles Huston 

Peter Lewis 

Douglas MacMichael 

Paul Messer 

Robert Nelson 

Steve Northroup 

Justin Parrish 

Thomas Perschy 

Peter Stanley 

Chip Steward 
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THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

1996 TOWN WARRANT 

To the inhabitants of the Town of New London in the County of Merrimack and State of New 

Hampshire, qualified to vote in town affairs: 

You are hereby notified to meet at the Whipple Memorial Hall in said New London on 

Tuesday, the twelfth day of March, 1996 at 10:00 o’clock in the forenoon to act upon the fol- 

lowing subjects: 

‘ARTICLE 1. 
To choose all necessary Town Officers for the ensuing year. 

NOTE: By law, the meeting must open before the voting starts. Therefore, the meeting and 

polls will open at 10:00 o’clock for the consideration of Article 1. At 12:00 noon the meeting 

will recess, but the polls will remain open until 7:00 p.m. The meeting will reconvene at the 

Kearsarge Middle School Gymnasium on Wednesday, March 13 at 7:00 p.m. to act upon 

Articles 2 through 30. 

ARTICLE 2. 

“To see if the Town will vote to suspend the reading of the individual Articles of the Warrant 

and to refer them by number.” (Majority vote required). 

ARTICLE 3. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following sums for General 

Government operations.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend 

this appropriation. (Majority vote required) 

1996 1995 

Executive $ 62,877 $ 61,820 
Elections,Reg. & Vitals 33,874 27,946 

Financial Administration 159,749 142,474 

Revaluation of Property 12,000 11,000 

Legal Expenses 21,300 20,400 

Employee Benefits 285,682 261,890 

Planning and Zoning 20,780 21,783 

General Government Buildings 75,134 74,530 

Cemeteries 20,000 13,900 

Insurance 103,500 127,250 

Regional Association (UVLSRPC) 2,957 2,957 

Tourism Promo (Info Booth) 4,000 4,000 

TOTAL 801,853 769,950 
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ARTICLE 4. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following sums for Public Safety.” 

The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. 

(Majority vote required) 

1996 1995 

Police Department $258,234 $266,738 
Fire Department 46,353 49,370 

Emergency Management 1,700 1,500 

Dispatch 124,536 119.470 

TOTAL 430,823 437,078 

ARTICLE 5. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following sums for Highways and 

Streets.” (Highway Construction is offset by $73,269 Highway Block Grant money). The 

Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. 

(Majority vote required) _ 

1996 1995 

Highway Administration $177,270 $172,214 
Highway Construction 330,470 343,371 

Bridge Administration 10,000 10,000 
Street Lighting 24,500 23,000 

TOTAL 542,240 548,585 

ARTICLE 6. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following sums for Sanitation.” The 

Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority 

vote required) 

1996 1995 

Solid Waste Administration $ 64,571 $ 63,685 

Solid Waste Collection 51,850 37,800 

Solid Waste Disposal 260,200 252,200 

Sewage Collection and Disposal 386,036 375,780 

TOTAL 762,657 729,465 

ARTICLE 7. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following sums for Health Agencies, 

Health Officer, Welfare, and Intergovernmental Welfare.” The Board of Selectmen and 

Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required) 

1996 1995 

Kearsarge Council on Aging $ 6,000 $ 6,000 
New London Ambulance 12,998 19,745 

Lake Sunapee VNA 11,162 11,162 

Health Officer 3,950 4,000 

Welfare Administration 250 150 

Welfare- Vendor Payments 10,500 7,500 

Intergovernmental Welfare-CAP 2,188 2.188 

TOTAL 47,048 50,745 



ARTICLE 8. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following sums for Culture and 

Recreation.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropri- 

ation. (Majority vote required) 

1996 1995 

Parks and Recreation $ 28,200 $ 27,690 
Tracy Memorial Library 181,470 165,480 

Patriotic Purposes 300 300 

History and Archives 800 1,000 

TOTAL 210,770 194,470 

ARTICLE 9. 
_ “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following sums for Conservation.” 

The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. 

(Majority vote required) 

1996 1995 

Conservation Admin. $ 7,870 $ 5,000 
Care of Trees 8,000 8.000 

TOTAL 15,870 13,000 

ARTICLE 10. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following sums for the payment of 

principal and interest of long-term debt; and interest for tax anticipation notes.” The Board 

of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote 

required) 

1996 1995 

Princ/Bonds & Notes $146,358 $131,899 

Int/Bonds & Notes OTS. 73,920 

Interest/TANS 500 1,500 

TOTAL 214,613 207,319 

ARTICLE 11. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ($8,500) eight thousand five 

hundred dollars to be added to the previously established Conservation Commission Land 

Acquisition Fund and to authorize the expenditure of ($6,000) six thousand dollars from said 

fund to be used to survey and purchase a conservation easement consisting of a portion of Tax 

Map 81, Lot 1 of approximately 9 acres of land comprising a 300+/- foot strip of land adjoin- 

ing the Esther Currier Wildlife Management area at Low Plain.” (This area is the marsh area 

that can be seen from Route 11) The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recom- 

mend this appropriation. (Majority vote required.) 

ARTICLE 12. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ($5,500) five thousand five 

hundred dollars to purchase a strip of land (3 rods wide by 326+/- feet long) known as Tax 

Map 89, Lot 6 for the purpose of gaining permanent access to Town owned property. The 

Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority 

vote required.) 
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ARTICLE 13. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ($3,642) three thousand six 

hundred forty two dollars for the purpose of reducing the principal on the 1979 Sewer Bond 

and to authorize the transfer of ($3,642) three thousand six hundred forty two dollars from the 

December 31, 1995 fund balance for this purpose.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget 

Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required) 

ARTICLE 14. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ($22,000) twenty two thou- 

sand dollars for the purchase of a police cruiser.’ The Board of Selectmen and Budget 

Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required) 

ARTICLE 15. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ($9,000) nine thousand dol- 

lars for the purchase of a flail mower for the Highway Department.” The Board of 

Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote 

required). 

ARTICLE 16. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ($15,000) fifteen thousand 

dollars to purchase and install a sprinkler system at the Fire Station.” The Board of 

Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote 

required). 

ARTICLE 17. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ($22,925) twenty-two thou- 

sand nine hundred twenty five dollars to digitize the Town tax maps, link databases and pur- 

chase viewing software.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend 

this appropriation. (Majority vote required.) 

ARTICLE 18. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ($16,500) sixteen thousand 

five hundred dollars to scrape and paint the Tracy Library.” The Board of Selectmen and 

Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required.) 

ARTICLE 19. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ($10,000) ten thousand dol- 

lars to be added to the previously established Town History/Publication Fund. This will be a 

non-lapsing account per RSA 32:7, VI and will not lapse until the History is published or 

1999, whichever is sooner.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend 

this appropriation. (Majority vote required) 

ARTICLE 20. 

“To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Town History/Publication Fund to include all 

accumulated interest in the amount of $356.23 for the year 1995 and to add accrued interest 

during 1996 to the said fund.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recom- 

mend this appropriation. (Majority vote required.) 

im 



ARTICLE 21. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ($8,200) eight thousand two 

hundred dollars to be added to the previously established non-lapsing Master Plan Update 

fund. This money will be placed in a non-lapsing account per RSA 32:7 VI and will not lapse 

until the plan is completed or in 1997, whichever is sooner.” The Board of Selectmen and 

Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required.) 

ARTICLE 22. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ($6,500) six thousand five 

hundred dollars to be added to the previously established non-lapsing Master Plan Update 

Fund and to authorize the withdrawal of ($6,500) six thousand five hundred dollars from the 

Master Plan Update Capital Reserve Fund for this purpose, thereby discontinuing said fund, 

and transfer any accumulated interest to date of withdrawal to the general fund.” The Board 

of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote 

required.) 

ARTICLE 23. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate funds to be placed in the previously 

established Capital Reserve Funds as follows:” 

Fire Vehicles Capital Reserve Fund $30,000 
Revaluation Capital Reserve Fund $40,000 
Town Building Capital Reserve Fund $10,000 - 
Highway Heavy Equipment Capital Reserve Fund $61,000 

Dispatch Radio Equipment Capital Reserve Fund $10,000 

The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. 

(Majority vote required.) 

ARTICLE 24. 

“To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ($6,000) six thousand dollars 

for the purpose of installing waterlines and performing general road repair work in the Old 

Main Street Cemetery, and to appoint the Cemetery Trustees as agents to expend and to autho- 

rize the withdrawal of ($6,000) six thousand dollars from the General Cemetery Maintenance 

Fund for this purpose.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this 

appropriation. (Majority vote required.) 

ARTICLE 25. 

“To see if the Town will vote to establish a Capital Reserve Fund under the provisions of RSA 

35:1 for the purpose of Town Hall Generator Replacement and to raise and appropriate the 

sum of ($5,000) five thousand dollars to be placed in this fund.” The Board of Selectmen 

and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required.) 

ARTICLE 26. 

“To see if the Town will vote to establish a Capital Reserve Fund under the provisions of RSA 

35:1 for the purpose of establishing a fund for future Sidewalk Installation and to raise and 

appropriate the sum of ($5,000) five thousand dollars to be placed in this fund.” The Board 

of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote 

required.) 

14 



ARTICLE 27. 

“To see if the Town will vote to amend the existing agreement under Section 218 of the Social 

Security Act by excluding the services performed by election workers for a calendar year in 

which the remuneration paid for such service is less than $1,000.” (Majority vote required.) 

ARTICLE 28. 

“To see if the Town will vote to rescind the unissued, previously authorized balance of 

$239,882 from the following warrant articles” (dollar amounts were not needed to complete 

the projects but amounts remaining on the books are liabilities): 

Article 2 of the 1989 Town Meeting approved an appropriation of $81,600 for Goosehole 

Road construction, including bonds or notes authorized not to exceed $81,600. In 1990, the 

Town issued $72,000 leaving $9,600 as authorized - unissued. 

Article 2 of the 1990 Town Meeting appropriated $1,285,300 for an addition to the Tracy 

- Memorial Library to be financed by long-term borrowing of $916,405 and donations of 

$368,895. Only $906,239 of the $916,405 authorized was issued, leaving a balance of 
$10,166 authorized - unissued. 

Article 2 of the 1992 Town Meeting approved an appropriation of $213,116 for the closure of 

the landfill. Only $48,000 of the $213,116 authorized was issued leaving a balance of 

$165,116 authorized - unissued. 

Article 2 of the 1993 Town Meeting appropriated $400,000 for sewer line construction to be 

financed by long-term borrowing. During 1993, the Town issued $345,000 leaving $55,000 

as authorized - unissued. (Majority vote required.) 

ARTICLE 29. 

“To see if the Town will authorize the following exchange of property: To exchange a portion 

of property owned by the Town of New London, described as Tax Map 94, Lot 7, consisting 

of .38 acres, with a portion of property owned by Bob Bell, described as Tax Map 94, Lot 8, 

consisting of .98 acres.” The Board of Selectmen, Conservation Commission and 

Planning Board support this land exchange. (Majority vote required.) 

ARTICLE 30. 

“To hear the reports of agents, auditors, and committees heretofore chosen, to pass any vote 

relating thereto, and to transact and other business that may legally come before said meet- 

ing.” (Majority vote required.) 

Given under our hands and seal this twelfth day of February, in the Year of Our Lord, nineteen 

hundred and ninety six. 

James W. Moreland,Chairman 

April D. Whittaker 

Harold W. Buker, Jr. 

New London Board of Selectmen 

A True Copy of Warrant - Attest: 

James W. Moreland, Chairman 

April D. Whittaker 

Harold W. Buker, Jr. 

New London Board of Selectmen 
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SUMMARY OF INVENTORY OF VALUATION, TAX RATE ANALYSIS 

1995 

Land (all) $191,760,493 

Residential Bldgs. 249 432,702 

Public Utilities 3,662,935 

Commercial Buildings 23,664,100 

Valuation before exemptions 468,520,230 

Less: Elderly Exemption 145,000 

Physically Handicapped 207,200 

Solar Exemptions 92,631 

School Exemption 650,000 

Less: Total Exemptions 1,094,831 

Net Valuation for Tax Rate $467 ,425,399 

TAX COMMITMENT ANALYSIS 

Property Taxes Assessed $6,450,470 $6,415,153 Tax Committed to Coll. 

Less: Veterans Exemption 36,200 883 Abatements 

$6,414,270 $6,414,270 

PROOF OF TAX RATE COMPUTATION 

Tax Rate = $$ to be raised by taxes divided by valuation 

$13.80 = $6,450,470 / $467,425,399 

TAX RATE BREAKDOWN 

1995 1994 1993 

Town 3.56 3.76 3.74 

School 8.22 rel 6.93 

County 2.02 1.94 2.03 

TAX RATE* 13.80 12.81 12.70 

WATER PCT. 0 0 1.10 

TAX RATE** — 13.80 12.81 13.80 

*Not in Water Precinct 

**In Water Precinct 
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TOWN MEETING - MARCH 14, 1995 

Balloting - Whipple Memorial Hall 

Moderator Hilary P. Cleveland called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Moderator 

Cleveland entertained a motion to consider Article 1. Motion was seconded and passed. 

BRLICLESL, 

A. To choose all necessary Town Officers for the ensuing year. 

B. To vote by ballot on amendments to the New London Zoning Ordinance. 

Moderator Cleveland announced Absentee Ballots would be called at 2:00 p.m. 

At 12:00 noon Moderator Hillary P. Cleveland recognized Lois E. Marshall who made a 

motion to recess the meeting until 7:00 p.m. Wednesday, March 15, 1995, at the Kearsarge 

Regional Middle School to take up Articles 2 through 26. The polls will remain open until 

7:00 p.m. Motion was seconded and passed. 

The polls closed at 7:00 p.m., and counting of ballots commenced at 8:00 p.m. At 9:45 

p.m. Moderator Cleveland read the results of the balloting. 

Attest: Lois E. Marshall, Town Clerk 

Results of Non-Partisan Balloting for Town Officers and Proposed Zoning Amendments: 

Total registered voters - 2560; 548 regular ballots cast and 64 absentee ballots cast for a total 

of 612 ballots cast or 27% of the total registered voters. 

NO. OF VOTES 

For Selectman (for 3 years) Vote for One 

Harold W. Buker, Jr. 537 

Edward E. Church 92 

William Berger 3 

Laurie DiClerico l 

Gordon Marshall 1 

Harry Blunt l 

Read Clarke l 

John Clough ] 

For Selectman (for | year) Vote for One 

James W. Moreland 

Edward Church 

Gordon Marshall 

John Clough 

Sue Clough 

Hilary Cleveland 

David Kidder 

Frank Hammond 

Douglas Atkins 

Read Clarke 

John MacKenna 

Nn Nn ON 
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NO. OF VOTES 

Calvin Rockwood l 

Howard Hoke 1 

Sean Keating 1 

Claire Crockford 1 

For Fire Chief (for 1 year) Vote for One 

Walter Partridge 584 

Peter Stanley 2 

Arnold Bachman 2 

Laurids T. Lauridsen ] 

Les Shaw 1 

For Trustee of Trust Funds (for 3 years) Vote for One 

Martin S. Feins 379 

Peter E. Hager ~ 207 

Zunk Buker 2 

Hugh Keating 1 

For Budget Committee (for 3 years) Vote for Three 

Jon Barselle 487 

David A. Eberly 473 

Mark Kaplan 338 

Hugh Keating 265 

Doug Homan ] 

Peter Bianchi 1 

Ernie Welch 1 

David Harris 1 
Robert Cricenti l 

Peter Roos ] 

Marilyn Barselle 1 
Tom McCormick 1 

Loreene Keating l 

Nancy Fifield 1 

For Sewer Commissioner (for 3 years) Vote for One 

William J. Faccone, Jr. 562 

Tom Miller fi 

Ann Beardsley 
Carl Hill ] 

Joe Szylagyi 1 

E. Belmer 1 

Zunk Buker 1 

Raymond Dixon l 

For Cemetery Commissioner (for 3 years) Vote for One 

Charles M. Hafner 581 

Paul Linehan ] 
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NO. OF VOTES 

Douglas Baxter 

Robert MacMichael 

Walt Chadwick 

E. Belmer ee ee eS 

For Library Trustee (for 3 years) Vote for Two 

Hardy Hasenfuss 520 

Joan B. Sweeny 521 

Susie Zanes 1 

Thelma Kaplan l 

Carlton Bradford l 

Bill Cooper l 

Ann Keating ] 

Sean Keating l 
Ginny Foose ] 

Lori Ann Levy-Holm ] 

For Kearsarge Regional School District School Board (for 3 years) Vote for One 

Barbara C. Brown 55] 

Rink Mann l 

Deborah Prescott l 

William Steel 
Robert Fraley 1 

1 Laura MacKenna 

For Kearsarge Regional School District Municipal Budget Committee 

(for 3 years) Vote for One 

Howard B. Hoke 305 

Fred J. Bosworth 204 

Robert Cricenti 2 

Charles Mortensen 1 

Nancy Fifield 
Harold W. Buker, Jr. 1 

Hugh Keating 1 

For Kearsarge Regional School District Moderator (for 1 year) Vote for One 

Bob Bowers wake 

Hilary Cleveland 5 
Brackett Scheffy 4 

Alf Jacobson 4 

Don Lowe ] 

Phil Bachman 1 
Lois Marshall 1 

Paul Linehan 1 

Tom McCormick 1 

Julien LeBourgeois ] 
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BALLOT RESULTS ON AMENDMENTS TO THE NEW LONDON ZONING ORDI- 

NANCE 

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. | as proposed by the Planning Board for 

the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

AMENDMENT NO. 1: 

The Planning Board’s Amendment No. | amends Article II General Provisions, 

Paragraph 5. Height Regulation to allow a radio tower up to and including seventy feet 

in height as a permitted use in all districts and to allow a radio tower in excess of sev- 

enty feet in height in all districts by Special Exception. 

YES -448 NO- 144 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. | is an attempt to bring New 

London’s Zoning Ordinance height limitations as they apply to radio towers more in 

line with the rulings of the Federal Communications Commission. 

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 2 as proposed by the Planning Board for 

the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

AMENDMENT NO. 2: 

The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 2 amends Article XIV Enforcement, Paragraph 

A. Authority, Sub-paragraph 3. Permits to require a building permit for interior alter- 

ations valued greater than $5,000. 

YES - 308 NO- 295 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 2 is an attempt to keep track of 

substantial internal building improvements which affect overall property valuation and 

local property taxes. 

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 3 as proposed by the Planning Board for 

the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

AMENDMENT NO. 3: 

The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 3 amends Article V Residential Districts, 

Paragraph C. Yard Requirements, Sub-paragraph 2. to add a sideyard setback require- 

ment for an interior lot in the R-2 District served by public water and sewer. 

YES -485 NO-85 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 3 will add a sideyard setback 

requirement for an interior lot in the R-2 District served by public water and sewer. In 

an apparent oversight, the Zoning Ordinance as written does not provide for such a set- 

back. 

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 4 as proposed by the Planning Board for 

the New London Zoning Ordinance? 
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AMENDMENT NO. 4: 

The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 4 amends Article V Residential Districts, 

Paragraph C. Yard Requirements, to eliminate Sub-paragraph 4 which provides that on 

any side yard not abutting a street, a detached private garage may be erected and main- 

tained within the rear quarter of the lot if not closer to the side lot line than four (4) 

feet. 

YES -471 NO- 113 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 4 will eliminate what they think 

is an antiquated and confusing provision of the zoning ordinance. 

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 5 as proposed by the Planning Board for 

~ the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

AMENDMENT NO. 5: 

The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 5 amends Article XX Wetlands Conservation 

Overlay District, Paragraph B. Overlay District Boundaries, Sub-paragraph 1 to delete 

lakes and ponds from being included as wetlands since they are afforded protection by 

the Shore Land Overlay District. 

YES -514 NO-72 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 5 will eliminate jurisdictional 

confusion between the Wetlands Conservation Overlay District and the Shore Land 

Overlay District by deleting lakes and ponds from being included as wetlands since 

they are already included and protected by the Shore Land Overlay District. 

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 6 as proposed by the Planning Board for 

the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

AMENDMENT NO. 6: 

The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 6 amends Article III Definitions, Paragraph 34. 

Frontage to clarify that frontage refers to road frontage, that lake shore frontage is not 

considered frontage under this definition, and that the orientation of the house has no 

bearing on the determination of frontage. 

YES-516 NO- 66 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 6 will clarify the distinction 

between road frontage and shore frontage. 

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 7 as proposed by the Planning Board for 

the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

AMENDMENT NO. 7: 

The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 7 amends Article XX Wetlands Conservation 

Overlay District to: 1) amend Paragraph B. Overlay District Boundaries to add a new 

sub-paragraph v. Wetland buffers as defined in 2) below to the Overlay District 

Boundaries, and 2) amend Paragraph F. Special Provisions to add a new sub-paragraph 

(5) to provide for wetland buffers as follows: a) 200 feet from all designated prime 
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wetlands (there are three designated prime wetlands in New London: the Philbrick- 

Cricenti Bog, the Low Plains Wetland and the Goosehole Marsh), and b) 150 feet from 

wetlands comprised of very poorly drained soils which adjoin or are connected to des- 

ignated prime wetlands. Additionally, this amendment provides for consideration of a 

reduction of the buffer distance through the Special Exception rather than Variance 

process. 

YES -467 NO-119 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 7 will provide additional pro- 

tection of the designated prime wetlands and the adjoining wetlands comprised of very 

poorly drained soils by requiring retention of a naturally vegetated buffer around those 

wetlands. Currently building construction is permitted with no setback or buffer from 

those identified wetlands. 

CONTINUATION OF TOWN MEETING - MARCH 15, 1995 

KEARSARGE REGIONAL MIDDLE SCHOOL AT 7:00 P.M. 

Moderator Hilary P. Cleveland reconvened the Town Meeting at 7:00 p.m. 288 registered 

voters checked in with the ballot clerks. Moderator Cleveland read the results of the election 

on Tuesday, March 14, 1995. 

ARTICLE 2: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to suspend the read- 

ing of the individual Articles of the Warrant and to refer to them by number.” (Majority vote 

required). 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 3: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropri- 

ate the sum of ($35,000) thirty five thousand dollars for the purpose of hiring a consultant to 

continue to explore, examine and evaluate possible organizational alternatives for the KRSD 

in which New London is currently a member.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget 

Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

Moderator Cleveland recognized Harold Buker, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen. He 

enlisted the help of the Selectmen James Moreland and April Whittaker in presenting certifi- 

cates of appreciation to several citizens who have completed terms on town boards. He 

expressed the thanks of the town for the countless hours spent by volunteers on behalf of the 

Town of New London. 

Luther Child - Conservation Commission 

John Clough - Kearsarge Regional Municipal Budget Com. 

Robert Cricenti - Budget Committee 

Edwin Goodall - Recreation Commission 

Peter Hager - Trustee of Trust Funds 

Susan Irwin - Library Trustee 
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Thomas Miller - Sewer Commission 

Brian Prescott - Budget Committee 

John Woodward - History & Archives Committee 

Deborah Prescott - School Board 

Stuart Sidmore - Emergency Management Committee 

ARTICLE 4: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropri- 

ate the following sums for General Government operations.” The Board-of Selectmen and 

Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required) 

1994 1995 

Executive $ 8,250 $ 61,820 

Elections, Reg. & Vitals 39,632 27,946 

Financial Administration 177,168 142,474 

Revaluation of Property 13,466 11,000 

Legal Expenses 30,300 20,400 

Employee Benefits 244,600 261,890 

Planning and Zoning 2522. 21,783 

General Government Buildings 63,740 74,530 

Cemeteries 14,100 13,900 

Insurance 122,800 127,250 

Regional Association(UVLSC) 2,957 2,957 

Tourism Promo(Info Booth) 3,500 4,000 

TOTAL: 745,746 769,950 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 5: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropri- 

ate the sum of ($2,390) two thousand three hundred ninety dollars for the purpose of improve- 

ments to Recreation Buildings and to transfer ($2,390) two thousand three hundred ninety 

dollars (Park Fee money) from the December 31, 1994 surplus fund for this purpose.” The 

Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote 

required). 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 6: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropri- 

ate the following sums for Public Safety.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee 

recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required). 

1994 1995 

Police Department $ 231,661 $ 266,738 
Fire Department 55,049 49,370 

Emergency Management 1,500 1,500 

Dispatch 128,579 119,470 

TOTAL: 416,789 437,078 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 
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ARTICLE 7: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropri- 

ate the sum of ($21,500) twenty one thousand five hundred dollars for the purchase of a 

police cruiser.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropria- 

tion. (Majority vote required). 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 8: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropri- 

ate the following sums for Highways and Streets.” (Highway Construction is offset by 

$73,341 Highway Block Grant money). The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee rec- 

ommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required). 

1994 1995 

Highway Administration $ 10,700 nh Beat 

Highway Construction 428,888 343,371 

Bridge Maintenance 7,000 10,000 

Street Lighting 21,000 23,000 

Other Highways & Streets 70,017 0 

TOTAL: 537,605 548,585 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 9: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropri- 

ate the sum of ($31,000) thirty one thousand dollars for the purchase of a (1) one ton highway 

department dump truck.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this 

appropriation. (Majority vote required). 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 10: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appro- 

priate the sum of ($70,000) seventy thousand dollars (actual cost less trade in) for the pur- 

chase of a loader and to authorize the withdrawal of ($38,000) thirty eight thousand dollars 

from the Highway Capital Reserve fund to offset the cost.” The Board of Selectmen and 

Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required). 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 11: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appro- 

priate the following sums for Sanitation.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee 

recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required). 

1994 1995 

Solid Waste Admin. >. 9:59;299 $ 63,685 

Solid Waste Collection 52,603 37,800 

Solid Waste Disposal 294,000 252,200 

Sewage Coll. and Disposal 395,426 375,780 

TOTAL: 801,328 729,465 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 
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ARTICLE 12: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and 

appropriate the sum of ($3,000) three thousand dollars to hold a local Household 

Hazardous Waste Collection Day; said project will encourage the proper disposal of house- 

hold hazardous wastes such as paint thinners, solvents,and pesticides and seek to educate 

citizens about the adverse environmental consequences of improper household hazardous 

waste disposal.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropri- 

ation. (Majority vote required). 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 13: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appro- 

priate the following sums for Health Agencies, Health Officer, Welfare, and 

Intergovernmental Welfare.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend 

this appropriation. (Majority vote required). 

1994 1995 

Kearsarge Council Aging $ 6,000 $ 6,000 
New London Hospital 12,000 0 

New London Ambulance 14,017 19,745 

Lake Sunapee VNA 10,621 11,162 

Health Officer 3,850 4,000 

Welfare Administration 0 150 

Welfare- Vendor Payments 7,500 7,500 

Intergovernmental Welfare-CAP 2,084 2,188 

TOTAL: 56,072 50,745 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 14: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appro- 

priate the following sums for Culture and Recreation.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget 

Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required). 

1994 1995 

Parks and Recreation $ 28,440 $ 27,690 
Tracy Memorial Library 159,037 165,480 

Patriotic Purposes 300 300 

History and Archives 750 1,000 

TOTAL: 188,527 194,470 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 15: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appro- 

priate the sum of ($15,000) fifteen thousand dollars toward the future publication of the Town 

History. This will be a non-lapsing account per RSA 32:7, VI and will not lapse until the 

History is published or 1999, whichever is sooner.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget 

Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required). 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 
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ARTICLE 16: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and apprv 

priate the following sums for Conservation.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee 

recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required.) 

1994 1995 

Conservation Admin. o- @>,000 $ 5,000 

Care of Trees 8,000 8,000 

TOTAL: 13,000 13,000 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 17: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appro- 

priate the following sums for the payment of principal and interest of long-term debt; and 

interest for tax anticipation notes.” The Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee recom- 

mend this appropriation. (Majority vote required). 

1994 1995 

Princ/Bonds & Notes: $ 199,357 $ 131,899 

Int/Bonds & Notes 90,848 73,920 

Interest/TANS 1,500 1,500 

TOTAL: 291,705 207,319 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 18: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appro- 

priate the sum of ($20,951) twenty thousand nine hundred fifty one dollars for the purpose of 

reducing the principal ($18,101) and interest ($2,850) on the 1979 Sewer Bond and to autho- 

rize the transfer of ($20,951) twenty thousand nine hundred fifty one dollars from the 

December 31, 1994 fund balance for this purpose.” The Board of Selectmen and the Budget 

Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required). 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 19: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appro- 

priate the sum of ($30,000) thirty thousand dollars to be added to the previously established 

Fire Truck Capital Reserve Fund.” Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appro- 

priation. (Majority vote required.) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 20: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appro- 

priate the sum of ($30,000) thirty thousand dollars to be added to the previously established 

Capital Reserve Fund for the future revaluation of the town.” Selectmen and Budget 

Committee recommend this appropriation. (Majority vote required. ) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 21: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appro- 

priate the sum of ($10,000) ten thousand dollars to be added to the previously established 

Capital Reserve Fund for the Master Plan Update and to designate the Board of Selectmen as 
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agents to expend.” Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. 

(Majority vote required.) 

Moderator Cleveland recognized Selectman Whittaker who made a motion to amend 

Article 21 to read as follows, “To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of 

($10,000) ten thousand dollars to publish a Master Plan update. This money will be placed in 

a non-lapsing account per RSA 32:7 VI and will not lapse until the master plan is complete or 

1997, whichever is sooner.” The motion was seconded. 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE ON THE AMENDMENT 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE ON THE AMENDED ARTICLE 

ARTICLE 22: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to establish a 

Capital Reserve Fund under the provisions of RSA 35:1 for the purpose of Dispatch Radio 

replacement and to raise and appropriate the sum of ($10,000) ten thousand dollars to be 

placed in this fund.” Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropriation. 

(Majority vote required.) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 23: It was moved and seconded, ‘“‘To see if the Town will vote to establish a 

Capital Reserve Fund under the provisions of RSA 35:1 for Conservation Commission Land 

Acquisition and to raise and appropriate the sum of ($8,500) eight thousand five hundred dol- 

lars to be placed in this fund. Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend this appropria- 

tion. (Majority vote required.) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 24: It was moved and seconded, ““To see if the Town will vote to authorize the 

Board of Selectmen to accept, on behalf of the town, gifts, legacies, and devises made to the 

town in trust for any public purpose. This authorization is in accordance with RSA 31:19 and 

shall remain in effect until rescinded.”” (Majority vote required). 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 25: It was moved and seconded, “To see if the Town will vote to authorize the 

Board of Selectmen the authority to accept roads/streets. This authorization is in accordance 

with RSA 674:40-a and shall remain in effect until rescinded.” (Majority vote required). 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 26: “To hear the reports of agents, auditors, and committees heretofore chosen, to 

pass any vote relating thereto, and to transact any other business that may legally come before 

said meeting.” 

Moderator Hilary Cleveland recognized Priscilla Ohler who asked the Selectmen when we 

might expect a report from the consultant who will be examining and evaluating possible 

a 



organizational alternatives for the KRSD. Chairman Buker indicated they hope to have a 

report by September 1995. 

There being no further business, Moderator Hilary Cleveland declared the meeting 

adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 

Lois E. Marshall, Town Clerk 

A True Copy Attest: Lois E. Marshall, Town Clerk 
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TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31, 1995 

(UNAUDITED) 

ASSETS 

Cash on Hand $2,025,661.64 

Conservation Commission 12,229.35 

Prepaid Interest on Sewer Bond 8,015.00 

ACCOUNTS DUE TOWN 

1995 Property Taxes” 334,265.07 

1995 Betterment (Job Seamans/Birch Acres) 3,487.66 

Unredeemed Taxes 136,585.48 

Accounts Receivable 450.72 

Sewer Rents 9,012.00 

Capital Reserve Accounts 

Kezar Lake 139,755.51 

Fire Vehicle 5:15.22 

Town Building 21,842.59 

Master Plan Update 6,941.10 

Wastewater Plant Equipment 115,910.45 

Highway Equipment 2,701.54 

Revaluation 41,236.52 

Conservation Commission Land Acquisition 8,660.70 

Dispatch Radio Replacement 10,000.00 

Expendable Trust Funds 

Library Building Maintenance 17,087.03 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Liabilities 

Unexpended Conservation Commission Funds $ 12,229.35 

School District Tax Payable 1,954,500.00 

Accounts Payable 13,759.20 

Capital Reserve Funds 442,223.43 

Expendable Trust Funds 17,087.03 

Uncollected Sewer Rents 9,012.00 

Uncollected Betterment (Job Seamans/Birch Acres) 3,487.66 

Equity 

Reserved for Encumbrances 37,787.42 

Designated Fund Balance 3,642.00 

Undesignated Fund Balance 495,289.29 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
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$2,045 ,905.99 

483,800.93 

442,223.43 

17,087.03 

$2,989,017.38 

2,452,298.67 

536,718.71 

$2,989,017.38 



COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES 

Fiscal Year Ending December 1995 

(UNAUDITED) 

Title of Revenue 

Land Use Change Taxes 

Yield Taxes 

Interest & Penalties on Taxes 

Business Licenses 

Motor Vehicle Fees 

Other Licenses,Permits,Fees 

Shared Revenue Block Grant 

Highway Block Grant 

State Aid Water Pollution Control 

Other State Grants & Reimbursements 

Income From Departments 

Income From Sewer Department 

Other Charges 

Special Assessments 

Sale of Municipal Property 

Interest on Investments 

Rent of Town Property 

Fines & Forfeits 

Insurance Reimbursements 

Insurance Dividends 

Insurance Claims 

Contributions & Donations 

Revenue - Other Misc Sources 

Transfers-Sewer Department 

Transfers-Capital Reserve Funds 

Transfers-Trust & Agency Funds 

Budgetary Use of Fund Balance 

TOTAL 

3B 

1995 Estimate 

$ 10,964.00 

5,602.00 

57,500.00 

15,000.00 

411,500.00 

16,000.00 

57,965.00 

73,868.00 

82,722.00 

1,500.00 

76,360.00 

375,780.00 

700.00 

7,723.00 

5,500.00 

45,000.00 

16,950.00 

2,700.00 

61,440.00 

42,950.00 

12,300.00 

5,635.00 

19,325.00 

26,017.00 

38,000.00 

7,500.00 

133,262.00 

$1,609,763.00 

1995 Revenues 

$ 11,346.00 

5,602.28 

mi Re J iar 

19,07 7297 

434,816.20 

17,174.69 

57,965.00 

73,868.49 

82,722.00 
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87,581.20 

375,780.00 

1,147.50 

7,723.00 

5,924.82 

3/, 194.038 

17,065.76 

3,695.00 

61,945.30 

62,963.37, 

13,908.36 

6,267.81 

22,402.71 

26,017.00 

38,000.00 

7,8 leh. 93 

133,262.00 

$1,691,679.31 
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Map/Lot No. Acres 

012-01 

016-01 

016-02 

028-02 

029-02 

029-04 

033-11 

033-19 

033-22 

042-19 

050-18 

056-01 

058-05A 

072-40 

074-37 

077-08 

077-10 

077-12 

077-23B 

078-05 

078-05A 

078-05B 

078-05C 

083-09 

084-14 

084-52 

084-64 

085-13 

085-14 

085-38 

087-05 

088-01 

088-05 

089-01 

093-06 

095-05 

095-20 

095-21 

095-22 

096-21 

099-16 

099-17 

100-03 

101-02 

101-03 

33 Ac. 

4.5 Ac. 

4.20 Ac. 

1.13 Ac. 

.62 Ac. 

70.9 Ac. 

.88 Ac. 

6.7 Ac. 

1.70 Ac. 

31 Ac. 

50 Ac. 

4.80 Ac. 

36.16 Ac. 

1.44 Ac. 

.60 Ac. 

1.50 Ac. 

AC, 

1 Ac. 

42 Ac. 

.96 Ac. 

.05 Ac. 

95 Ac. 

95 Ac. 

13.70 Ac: 

1 Ac. 

1 Ac. 

.27 Ac. 

3.80 Ac. 

.39 Ac. 

.29 Ac. 

.03 Ac. 

98.88 Ac. 

6 Ac. 

30.60 Ac. 

30.05 Ac. 

3.70 Ac. 

5.80 Ac. 

2 Ac. 

11.36 Ac. 

37 Ac. 

11.50 Ac. 

10.10 Ac. 

33 Ac. 

6.40 Ac. 

13.90 Ac. 

SCHEDULE OF TOWN PROPERTY 

Description 

Colby Sanctuary/Conservation Land 

Conservation Land Off I-89 

Conservation Land Off I-89 

Spaulding Right of Way 

Conservation Land Off Goosehole Rd. 

Phillips Memorial Preserve 

Bucklin Beach Land & Bldgs. 

Stump Dump 

Land, Little Sunapee Rd. 

Land, Otterville Rd. 

Island, Pleasant Lake 

Recycling & Disposal, Land & Bldgs. 

Philbrick/Cricenti Bog 

Conservation Land/Lakeside Rd. 

Land, Pleasant Street 

Elkins Post Office 

Elkins Beach, Land & Bldgs. 

Pleasant Lake Dam, Land & Bldgs. 

Tannery Pond, Elkins Rd. 

Scytheville Park Ext., Elkins Rd. 

Scytheville Park Dam, Elkins Rd. 

Scytheville Park 

Scythe Shop Pond, Elkins Rd. 

Backland Off South Pleasant Street 

Little Common, Main St. 

Library, Land & Bldgs. 

Fire Dept. Land & Bldgs. 

Sargent Common, Main St. 

Town Hall 

Town Hall - Offices 

Cemetery Well, Elkins Rd. 

Land, Rte. 11 - Low Plain, Conservation Land 

Elkins Cemetery, Elkins Rd. 

Land Off Laurel Lane 

Conservation Land, County Rd. 

Cemetery Land, Bog Rd. 

Highway Dept., Land & Bldgs. 

Sewer Commission 

Sewer Commission 

Backland Off Burpee Lane-Sewer Lagoons 

Conservation, Low Plain 

Conservation, Low Plain 

Conservation Land, Mountain Rd., Low Plain 

Mountain Rd.-Landfill Closure 

Mountain Rd.-Landfill Closure 

38 

Value 

$ 162,900 

13,500 

48,200 

100 

22,700 

304,800 

292,800 

67,500 

43,600 

35,400 

37,100 

331,700 

187,800 

30,000 

37,600 

393,400 

84,000 

230,300 

41,000 

12,600 

6,100 

7,000 

10,000 

75,000 

140,600 

890,600 

399,200 

371,300 

608,500 

175,900 

17,100 

289,800 

241,200 

167,400 

122,900 

53,600 

270,100 

70,200 

727,800 

92,500 

61,600 

57,700 

169,800 

47,900 

97,700 



101-04 

101-06 

101-08 

107-04 

112-01 

112-02 

112-06 

117-12A 

126-12 

TOTAL 

8.50 Ac. 

2 Ac. 

14.07 Ac. 

4.20 Ac. 

52.50 Ac. 

31.50 Ac. 

13 Ac. 

1.70 Ac. 

.067 Ac. 

Mountain Rd.-Landfill Closure 83,600 

Mountain Rd., Land & Bldgs. 45,100 

Landfill, Mountain Rd. 93,000 

Cemetery, Old Main St. 56,100 

Shepard Pit, Mountain Rd. 240,800 

Conservation Land, Mtn. Rd.-Low Plain,Shepard Spring 163,400 

Conservation Land, Wilder Lane-Low Plain 87,400 

Cemetery, County Rd. 48,100 

Off Soo-Nipi Park, Right-of-Way to Lake 3,200 

$8,369,200 
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STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT 

TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

(Bonded Debt of the School is not included) 

Tracy Library & 

Sewer Construct. Goose Hole Sewer Sewer Construct. 

July 1, 1979 July 15, 1990 July 9, 1993 
Original Amt. Interest Original Amt. Interest Original Amt. Interest 

Maturities $1,399,450 Rate $799,230 Rate $345,000 Rate 

1996 $ 70,000 5.65 $ 55,000 6.90 $ 25,000 5.20 

1997 70,000 x10 55,000 6.90 25,000 5.20 

1998 70,000 ape fa, 55,000 6.90 25,000 5.20 

1999 70,000 5.80 55,000 6.90 25,000 a 20 

2000 55,000 6.90 25,000 5.20 

2001 50,000 6.90 25,000 4.80 

2002 50,000 6.90 25,000 5.00 

2003 50,000 6.90 20,000 5.10 

2004 50,000 7.00 20,000 A Se 

2005 50,000 7.00 20,000 5.40 

2006 20,000 5.40 

2007 20,000 5.50 

2008 20,000 5.60 

$280,000 $525,000 $295,000 

TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

LONG TERM INDEBTEDNESS 

Comparative Balance Sheet 

December 31, 1995 and December 31, 1994 

Amount to be provided for 

Retirement of Long Term Debt 

1995 1994 

Due from General Fund 

Town’s Share $ 597,405.00 $ 670,506.00 

Due from Sewer Commission 295,000.00 320,000.00 

Due from N.H. Water Supply and 

Pollution Control Commission 207,595.00 259,494.00 

TOTAL ASSETS $1,100,000.00 _$1,250,000.00 
Long Term Debt Outstanding 

Sewer Construction Bonds - 1979 $ 280,000.00 $ 350,000.00 

Tracy Library & G H Sewer - 1990 525,000.00 580,000.00 

Sewer Construction Bonds - 1993 295,000.00 320,000.00 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $1,100,000.00 $1,250,000.00 
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Plodzik & Sanderson Professional Association 
132 North Main Street ¢ Concord, NH 03301 (603) 225-6996 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL PRESENTATION 

To the Members of 

the Board of Selectmen 

Town of New London 

New London, New Hampshire 

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the Town of New 

London as of and for the year ended December 31, 1994, as listed in the table of contents. 

These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Town’s management. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements 

based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 

general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting princi- 

ples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reason- 

able basis for our opinion. 

As described in Note 1B, the general purpose financial statements referred to above do not 

include the General Fixed Assets Account Group, which should be included to conform with 

generally accepted accounting principles. The amount that should be recorded in the General 

Fixed Assets Account Group is not known. 

In our opinion, except for the effect on the financial statements of the omission described in 

the preceding paragraph, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present 

fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Town of New London as of 

December 31, 1994, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its nonexpendable trust 

funds for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial 

statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund financial statements listed in 

the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 

part of the general purpose financial statements of the Town of New London. Such informa- 

tion has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose 

financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation 

to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

March 22, 1995 

4] 



REPORT OF THE TOWN CLERK 

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 1995 

ISSUE OF DOG LICENSES: 

4 Kennel Licenses $ 62.00 
560 Dog Licenses 2,233.00 

5 Dog Fines 300.00 

Payments due State on Dog Licenses era) 

Dog License Overpayments to Town 10.50 

Dog License Overpayments to State _. £685 00 

PAYMENTS TO TREASURER 

AUTO REGISTRATIONS: 

Auto Permits Issued 422,248.00 

Title Fees 1,436.00 

Municipal Agent Fees 11,130.00 

Auto Overpayments _ _ £250.20 

PAYMENTS TO TREASURER 

BOAT REGISTRATIONS: 

Boat Permits Issued & Agent Fees 1,553.84 

Payments due State on Boat Registrations 3,394.50 

Boat Fee Overpayments 32.96 

PAYMENTS TO TREASURER 

ALL OTHER FEES: 

503 Footpath Maps (1.00 each) 503.00 

15 Dredge & Fill Applications Z2OTAT 

33 Town Histories & 32 Hist. Sketches 362.00 

Uniform Commercial Code Filings bis fans 

20 Filing Fees 44.00 

33 Marriage Licenses 231.00 

Certified Copies: 

184 Birth Certificates 711.00 

723 Death Certificates 2,376.00 

19 Marriage Certificates 76.00 

13 Proofs of Residency 52.00 

Payment due State on Certified Copies 

and Marriage Licenses 5,121.00 

Miscellaneous Fees 60.82 

Non-Sufficient Fund Check Charges 100.00 

Overpayments 91.40 

PAYMENTS TO TREASURER 

TOTAL RECEIPTS $455,549.71 

TOTAL PAID TO TREASURER 

Respectfully submitted, 

LOIS E. MARSHALL 

Town Clerk 
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$ 3,782.50 

435,064.20 

4,981.30 

16 ies ie. 

$455,549.71 



TAX COLLECTOR’S REPORT 

Summary of Tax Accounts 

Fiscal Year Ended: 12/31/95 

TOWN OF NEW LONDON ————- Levies of —————_ 

1995 1994 Prior 

Uncollected Taxes - 

Beginning of Fiscal Year: 

Property Taxes $ 301,685.86 $ 
Land Use Change Tax 

Yield Taxes 

Sewer Rents 8,112.12 

Taxes Committed to Collector 

During Fiscal Year: 

Property Taxes $6,450,425.60 

Land Use Change Tax 17,464.00 

Yield Taxes 5,795.78 

Sewer Rents 185,472.68 217,163.04 

Sewer Prepayments 584.67 

Overpayments: 

Property Taxes 2,318.18 47.82 

Land Use Change Tax 

Yield Taxes 

Sewer Rents .O5 

Interest Collected on 

Delinquent Taxes oA Eat LOT 227 

Penalties Collected on 

Property Taxes 2,519.00 

Total Debits $6,667,278.45 $ 548,600.16 $ .0O 

Respectfully Submitted, 

LOIS MARSHALL 

Tax Collector 
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TAX COLLECTOR’S REPORT 

Summary of Tax Accounts 

Fiscal Year Ended: 12/31/95 

TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

Remitted to Treasurer - 

During Fiscal Year: 

Property Taxes $6,111,481.31 $ 301,372.98 $ 

Land Use Change Tax 11,346.00 

Yield Taxes 5,602.28 

Sewer Rents 176,225.08 217,324.96 

Sewer Prepayments 584.67 

Interest on Taxes 5,217.54 19,072.27 

Costs 2,519.00 

Discounts Allowed: 

Abatements Allowed: 

Property Taxes 3,509.74 360.70 

Land Use Change Tax 6,118.00 

Yield Taxes 193.50 

Sewer Rents 235.60 7,950.25 

Deeded to Town During Year: 

Uncollected Taxes - 

End of Fiscal Year: 

Property Taxes 33] toeeo 

Land Use Change Tax 

Yield Taxes 

Sewer Rents 9,012.00 

Total Credits $6,667,278.45 $ 548,600.16 $ 00 

1995 
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Levies of 

1994 Prior 

Respectfully Submitted, 

LOIS MARSHALL 

Tax Collector 



TAX COLLECTOR’S REPORT 

Summary of Tax Lien Accounts 

Fiscal Year Ended: 12/31/95 

TOWN OF NEW LONDON ———— Levies of 

1994 1993 Prior 

Balance of Unredeemed Taxes - 

Beginning of Fiscal Year: $ 80,998.47 $ 61,400.24 

Tax Liens Executed to Town 

During Fiscal Year: $ 134,536.97 

Interest Collected After 

Lien Execution: 2,676.68 5,012.29 22,058.38 

Collected Redemption Costs: 955.00 448.74 4333.07 

Total Debits $ 138,168.65 $ 86,459.50 $ 84,791.69 

Remittance to Treasurer - 

During Fiscal Year: 

Redemptions $ 50,543.80 $ 28,406.16 $ 61,400.24 

Interest and Costs 

(After Lien Execution) 3,631.68 5,461.03 23,391.45 

Abatement of Unredeemed Taxes: 

Deeded to Town During Year: 

Unredeemed Taxes - 

End of Fiscal Year: 83,993.17 52,592.31 

Total Credits $ 138,168.65 $ 86,459.50 $ 84,791.69 

Respectfully Submitted, 

LOIS MARSHALL 

Tax Collector 
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SUMMARY OF SEWER RENTS 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1995 

LEVY OF 1994 - FIRST BILLING 

Balance Due Uncollected Rents 

Sewer Rents Collected 

Interest Collected 

Costs Collected 

LEVY OF 1994 - SECOND BILLING 
—DR— 

RENTS COMMITTED TO COLLECTOR: 

Sewer Warrant 

Interest Collected 

Overpayments 

Costs Collected 

TOTAL DEBITS: 

=p 

REMITTANCES TO TREASURER: 

Sewer Rents Collected 

Abatements 

Interest Collected 

Costs Collected 

TOTAL CREDITS: 

LEVY OF 1995 - FIRST BILLING 
—DR— 

RENTS COMMITTED TO COLLECTOR: 

Sewer Warrant 

Interest Collected 

Prepayments Collected in 1995 for Second Billing 

TOTAL DEBITS: 

i 

REMITTANCES TO TREASURER: 

Sewer Rents Collected 

Abatements 

Interest Collected 

Prepayments Collected in 1995 for Second Billing 

Uncollected Rents 

TOTAL CREDITS: 
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8,112.12 

551.54 

30.00 

$217,163.04 

492.21 

05 

164.00 

$217,819.30 

$209,212.84 

7950.25 

492.21 

164.00 

$217,819.30 

$185,472.68 

149.89 

584.67 

$186,207.24 

$176,225.08 

235.60 

149.89 

584.67 

9,012.00 

$186,207.24 

Respectfully Submitted, 

LOIS MARSHALL 

Tax Collector 



UNREDEEMED TAXES FROM TAX LIEN 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1995 

TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

Bonanno, Janet A. 

073-54 187 Main Street 

Brown, Clinton C., Jr. 

130-04 67 King Hill Road 

Cadieux, Vincent R. 

300-215 46 Newport Road #215 

300-217 46 Newport Road #217 

Condict, Edgar R. & Judith 

096-07 91 Main Street 

Davis, Dana C. & Margaret 

075-04 6 Kearsarge Road 

Energy Watch Associates 

084-56 167 Main Street 

England, Michael S. & Harriet 

074-26 2 Greenwood Lane 

Everett House Partnership 

084-61A 177 Main St. Unit A 

084-61B 177 Main St. Unit B 

Fucarile, Thomas C. & Barbara E. 

074-46 40 Birch Acres Road 

G & M Trust 

118-12 73 Forest Acres Road 

118-13 71 Forest Acres Road 

118-14 69 Forest Acres Road 

118-15 67 Forest Acres Road 

118-30 60 Forest Acres Road 

Gott, L. Ross III & Susan R. 

117-01 44 Tracy Road 

Grace, Daniel L. & Cohen, Lenard 

& Ottobrini, Harold 

081-23 16 Columbus Avenue 

Hall Farm Properties, Inc. 

075-03 5 Kearsarge Road 

075-05 10 Quarry Road 

075-09 18 Hall Farm Road 

076-12 13 Tucker Road 

Levies of 

1994 

$ S893t75 

753.34 

822.70 

7 20 

4,811.05 

758.46 

3,030.68 

984.95 

381.00 

1,367.54 

3,890.23 

1395930 

786.45 

786.45 

794.79 

178.12 

2,849.84 

620.70 

400.71 

479.97 

336.10 

S21 Ad 

1993 

$ 6,158.74 

881.66 

881.66 

4,736.57 

1,045.17 

4,178.38 

2,824.62 

615.45 



Hall Farm Properties, Inc. 

076-36 4 Quarry Road 

076-41 27 Hall Farm Road 

076-42 31 Hall Farm Road 

076-43 26 Hall Farm Road 

076-51 4 Tucker Road 

076-52 33 Hall Farm Road 

076-54 28 Hall Farm Road 

076-55 30 Hall Farm Road 

076-56 32 Hall Farm Road 

086-12 19 Sargent Road 

087-10 40 Hall Farm Road 

Hall, Todd S. 

094-01 59 Knights Hill Road 

Hirschberg, Charles I. & 

Janet R. 

084-61D 177 Main St. Unit D 

Kunzig, Richard J. & Mary Lou 

051-21 28 Lake Shore Drive 

Laganas, Peter C. 

081-01 22 Farwell Lane 

081-02 18 Farwell Lane 

081-07 17 Farwell Lane 

081-08 23 Farwell Lane 

McLean Robert D. 

096-29 26 Burpee Lane 

Messer, Joseph E. 

129-11 170 King Hill Road 

129-11A 172 King Hill Road 

Mills, J. C. & Hockett, J. D. 

056-25 195 Newport Road 

Monahan, Joanne H. 

500-34 111 Route 11 Unit 34 

Moore, Peter V. & Susan E. 

033-16 121 Little Sunapee Road 

Moyer, Calvin L. & Urve V. 

050-07 73 Lake Shore Drive 

050-15 74 Lake Shore Drive 

Palmer, Darrel & Lois W. 

084-11 133 Main Street 
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$ 

Levies of 

1994 

336.10 

ayai23 

360.07 

342.95 

409.40 

393.64 

320.34 

335.41 

408.02 

363.50 

343.63 

4,636.51 

2,787.31 

09729 

794.81 

569.13 

562.16 

1,626.04 

2,951.06 

448.85 

1,425.13 

1,691.21 

4,171.75 

fee ae 

3,747.35 

609.72 

3,202.37 

1993 

4,595.28 

2,993.06 

5,309.61 

851.69 

610.91 

603.41 

1,746.78 

445.13 

1,412.45 

1,900.50 

311.49 

3,507.04 



Levies of 

1994 1993 

Pokravarian, Krikor & Vartouhi 

065-11 3 Lake Shore Drive $ °740.37 $ 628.74 

Pond, Evelyn B. 

085-19 12 Gould Road 2511292 

Poole, Charles F. & Patricia M. 

077-22 33 Elkins Road 1,380.45 1,368.39 

Ragonese, Nancy E. 

051-05 34 Lake Shore Drive 2S 1,714.52 

Rehberger, F., Jr. & 

Rehberger, E. H. & Ware, L. R. 

035-28 7 Sugarhouse Road RLU? 2,186.14 

Saxby, Daniel E. 

065-25 4 Sparrowhawk Road 2,225.08 1,084.92 

Wilson, Rexford 

116-14 9 Hastings Landing Road 417.56 

TOTAL UNREDEEMED TAXES 

FROM TAX LIEN $83,993.17 $52,592.31 

I hereby certify that the above list showing name and amount due from each delinquent 

taxpayer, as of December 31, 1995, on account of levies of 1993 and 1994, is correct to the 

best of my knowledge and belief. All taxes for years prior to 1993 have been paid in full. 

Respectfully submitted, 

LOIS E. MARSHALL 

Tax Collector 
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TOWN TREASURER’S REPORT 

During 1995 the Town did not have to borrow short term in anticipation of tax receipts, in 

part, by depositing funds not immediately needed for current operations in the New 

Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool. Total Town receipts of $8,773,927.70 in 1995 

increased $753,558.16 over 1994 or 9.6%. Disbursements of $8,239,109.16 increased 

$400,027.90 or 5.1% over 1994. No new notes were given by the Town in 1995. 

NEW LONDON TOWN ACCOUNTS 

General Account 

Cash on Hand January 1, 1995 

Amounts Received Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Amounts Paid Out Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Cash on Hand Dec. 31, 1995 

Conservation Commission Account 

Cash on Hand January 1, 1995 

Amounts Received Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Amounts Paid Out Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Cash on Hand Dec. 31, 1995 

Conservation Commission Currier Escrow Account 

Cash on Hand January 1, 1995 

Amounts Received Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Amounts Paid Out Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Cash on Hand Dec. 31, 1995 

Low Plains Escrow Account 

Cash on Hand January 1, 1995 

Amounts Received Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Amounts Paid Out Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Cash on Hand Dec. 31, 1995 

Bell Escrow Account 

Cash on Hand January 1, 1995 

Amounts Received Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Amounts Paid Out Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Cash on Hand Dec. 31, 1995 

Monetta Escrow Accounts 

Cash on Hand January 1, 1995 

Amounts Received Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Amounts Paid Out Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Cash on Hand Dec. 31, 1995 

50 

$ 1,477,590.13 
8,575,996.66 

$ 8,027,925.15 
2,025,661.64 

$ 2,080.39 
93.68 

$ 0.00 
211907 

$ 995.68 
sh weed 

$ 195.00 
840.07 

$ 0.00 
9,136.54 

$ 526.33 
8,610.21 

$ 21,846.50 
350.72 

SP Be 8 

0.00 

$ 1,510.18 

187,902.71 

$ 187,857.46 

1,555.43 

$10,053,586.79 

$10,053,586.79 

$ 2,779.07 

$ 2,779.07 

$ 1,035.07 

$ 1,035.07 

$ 9,136.54 

$ 9,136.54 

$ - 22,197.22 

$22,197.22 

$ 189,412.89 

$ 189,412.89 



SEWER COMMISSION ACCOUNTS 

Sewer Operating Account 

Cash on Hand January 1, 1995 

Amounts Received Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Amounts Paid Out Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Cash on Hand Dec. 31, 1995 

Sewer Replacement/Rehabilitation Account 

Cash on Hand January 1, 1995 

Amounts Received Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Amounts Paid Out Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Cash on Hand Dec. 31, 1995 

Sewer Construction Account 

Cash on Hand January 1, 1995 

Amounts Received Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Amounts Paid Out Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Cash on Hand Dec. 31, 1995 

Job Seamans/Birch Acres Operating Account 

Cash on Hand January 1, 1995 

Amounts Received Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Amounts Paid Out Jan.1 - Dec. 31, 1995 

Cash on Hand Dec. 31, 1995 

51 

$ 34,030.54 

418.487.78 

$ 435,520.68 

16,997.64 

$ 94,416.40 

17,054.16 

$ 108,976.68 

2,493.88 

$ 1,040.46 

pi 

$ 0.00 

1,066.58 

$ 46,566.03 

44,916.25 

$ 69,314.70 

22,167.58 

452,518.32 

452,518.32 

111,470.56 

111,470.56 

1,066.58 

1,066.58 

91,482.28 

91,482.28 

Respectfully Submitted, 

DAVID EBERLY, 

Treasurer 



TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1995 

(UNAUDITED) 

BY TAXATION: 
Prior Year Property Tax $ 299,168.89 

Interest 52,872.08 

Tax Sales Redeemed 140,350.20 

1995 Property Tax 6,078,665.06 

Interest 5,040.21 

Over Payments 2,318.18 

Yield Tax 5,602.28 

Land Use Change Tax 11,346.00 

FROM STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

TOTAL RECEIPTS 

2 

State Revenue Sharing Block Grant 153,602.00 

Sewer Bond 82,722.00 

Highway Block Grant 73,868.49 

Other State Grants & Reimbursements 2,295.00 

FROM LOCAL SOURCES, EXCEPT TAXES 

Business Licenses 19,677.97 

Motor Vehicle Fees 435,064.20 

Other Licenses, Permits & Fees 17,218.15 

Income from Departments Ol, ain 

Sewer User Charges 395,294.63 

Other Charges 1,147.50 

Special Assessments 6,650.43 

Sale of Municipal Property 5,924.82 

Interest on Investments 57,553.86 

Rents of Property 17,065.76 

Fines & Forfeits 3,695.00 

Insurance Reimbursements 61,945.30 

Insurance Dividends 62,563.37 

Insurance Claims 13,908.36 

Contributions & Donations 7,817.81 

Revenue—Other Misc Sources 22,402.71 

Transfers—Sewer Department 26,017.00 
Transfers—Capital Reserve Funds 38,000.00 

Transfers—Trust & Agency Fund 7,817.93 

Transfers—Solid Waste Disposal Escrow 136,956.49 

Transfers—Cons. Comm./Esther Currier 195.00 

Cemetery Lot Sales 10,800.00 

Payments Due State 9,692.50 

Payments Due NL Sewer Comm. 26,238.77 

Refunds from Library (Payroll) 119,402.89 

Refunds from Sewer (Payroll) 77,368.62 

$8,575,996.66 



TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1995 

(UNAUDITED) 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 

Executive $ 61,925.07 
Election, Registration & Vitals 27,647.95 

Financial Administration 134,545.66 

Revaluation of Property 13,875.10 

Legal Expenses 80,501.13 

Employee Benefits 256,632.47 

Planning and Zoning 25,134.22 

General Governmental Buildings 70,903.89 

Cemeteries 15,260.74 

Insurance 112,745.40 

Regional Associations 6,957.00 

PUBLIC SAFETY 

Police Department 245,138.83 

Fire Department 46,998.28 

Emergency Management 542.50 

Dispatch 118,892.29 

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS 

Highway Administration 163,661.27 

Highways and Streets 336,265.05 

Bridge Maintenance 8,659.96 

Street Lighting PIL ye FI 

SANITATION 

Solid Waste Administration 62,344.26 

Solid Waste Collection 33,912.58 

Solid Waste Disposal 249,461.52 

Solid Waste Cleanup 2,922.60 

Sewage Collection & Disposal 395,294.63 

HEALTH 

Health Department 3,809.29 

Health Agencies & Hospitals 36,907.00 

WELFARE 

Welfare—Administration 150.00 

Intergovernmental Welfare 2,188.00 

Welfare- Vendor Payments 4,690.94 

CULTURE AND RECREATION 

Parks and Recreation 24,045.00 

Tracy Memorial Library 165,480.00 

3 



Patriotic Purposes 

Other Culture - Archives 

CONSERVATION 

Conservation—Administration 

Care of Trees 

DEBT SERVICE 

Principal on Long Term Debt 

Interest on Long Term Notes 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Police Cruiser 

1 Ton Dump Truck 

CAT Loader 

INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT 

Transfers to Capital Reserve Funds 

TOTAL PAYMENTS—1995 WARRANT 

OTHER PAYMENTS 

Merrimack County Taxes 

NL Sewer(Job Seamans/Birch Acres) 

State of New Hampshire 

Kearsarge Regional School District 

Trustees of the Trust Fund 

Taxes Bought by Town 

Solid Waste Disposal Escrow 

Conservation Comm./ Esther Currier 

Refunds 

Payroll Deductions 

Salaries-Library 

Salaries-Sewer 

1994 Accounts Payable 

1994 Encumbered 

TOTAL OTHER PAYMENTS 

1995 SELECTMEN’S ORDERS PAID 

**Total Payments—1995 Warrant 

Adjustment—Sewer Budget 

1994 Encumbered 

‘1995 Accounts Payable 

Expended Dec. 31, 1995 

54 

300.00 

962.90 

1,404.54 

8,066.30 

150,000.00 

74,810.00 

20,840.75 

31,000.00 

67,216.00 

78,500.00 

952,937.00 

20 Lancet 

9,692.50 

3,287,214.00 

10,800.00 

134,536.97 

136,956.49 

195.00 

16,245.72 

163.10 

119,402.89 

77,368.62 

31,902.22 

Diaries 

$3,167,049.58 
(19,514.63) 

51 ,2ee129 

13,/39:20 

$3,218,516.44 

$3,167,049.58 ** 

$4,860,875.57 

$8,027,925.15 



DETAIL OF EXPENDITURES DECEMBER 31, 1995 

(UNAUDITED) 

EXECUTIVE 

Board of Selectmen 

Administration--Salaries 

Sewer Commissioners 

ELECTION, REGISTRATION & VITAL STATISTICS 

Supervisors’ Salaries 

Moderator’s Salary 

Ballot Clerks 

Counters 

Ads 

Ballots/Printing 

Town Clerk/Deputy Town Clerk—Salaries 

Town Clerk—Conferences 

Town Clerk—Supplies 

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 

Travel/Mileage Expenses 

Salaries 

General Expenses 

Telephone 

Postage 

Dues 

Conferences 

Registry of Deeds 

Town Meeting Expenses 

Printing 

Advertising 

Computer Expense 

Equipment Lease/Maint. 

Trustee Secretary Salary 

Gasoline/Diesel 

Subscriptions 

Selectmen’s Discretionary Acct 

Town Auditor 

Office Equipment 

Tax Collector/Deputy Tax Collector—Salaries 

Tax Collector—Conferences 

Tax Collector—Registry of Deeds 

Tax Collector—Supplies 

Mortgagee Research 

55 

6,000.00 

53,825.07 

2,100.00 

153.00 

40.00 

150.00 

45.00 

338.54 

462.00 

Pare et Se | 

620.90 

700.00 

1,465.26 

27,088.59 

4,835.36 

5,288.61 

6,420.38 

2,992.44 

1,047.84 

451.70 

349.20 

6,275.23 

1,967.51 

2,451.00 

6,463.01 

500.00 

29,025:07 

882.09 

4,567.36 

6,500.00 

1,417.94 

25,170.85 

723.24 

370.00 

1,407.38 

1,285.00 

bead oF! PK SY 

27,647.95 

134,545.66 



REVALUATION OF PROPERTY 

Assessing Expenses 

Assessment Card Services 

Tax Maps Update 

LEGAL EXPENSES 

Legal Expenses 

Animals 

Consultant/KRSD Study 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

NH Employee Retirement 

NH Police Retirement 

Social Security 

Health/Dental 

Life/Disability 

Flex Spending Accounts 

Employee Pay Raises 

PLANNING AND ZONING 

Planning Board—Printing 

Planning Board—Supplies 

PB—Advertising 

PB—Registry of Deeds 

PB—Secretarial 

PB—Conferences 

Planner 

PB—Master Plan 

Zoning—Supplies 

Zoning—Advertising 

Zoning—Secretarial 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT BUILDINGS 

Town Hall—Cleaning Services 

Town Hall—Electricity 

Town Hall—Heating Fuel 

Town Hall—Building Maint. 

Town Hall—Supplies 

Elkins P.O.—Electricity 

Elkins P.O.—Heating Fuel 

Elkins P.O.—Building Maint. 

Fire Station—Electricity 

Fire Station—Heating Fuel 

Fire Station—Building Maint. 

Highway Garage—Electricity 

Highway Garage—Heating Fuel 

Highway Garage—Building Maint. 

56 

12,001.60 

991.50 

882.00 

45,916.73 

756.00 

35,035.05 

19 PA 

5,467.02 

60,152.04 

148,700.93 

10,478.33 

812.00 

11,909.00 

274.58 

645.07 

263.50 

1,119.48 

2,065.60 

20.00 

18,720.00 

1,000.70 

12.50 

230.20 

FB2099 

7,800.00 

9,543.34 

2,884.15 

15,405.34 

909.11 

952.64 

496.35 

2,655.00 

2,150.62 

868.17 

7,578.46 

PSL 

1,686.52 

1,282.62 

13,875.10 

81,707.78 

256,632.47 

25,134.22 



Transfer Station—Electricity 

Transfer Station—Heating Fuel 

Transfer Station—Building Maint. 

Recreation Bldgs—Electricity 

Recreation Bldgs—Maintenance 

Information Booth—Maintenance 

Water/Sewer 

Town Clock Maintenance 

Hydrant Service Expense 

CEMETERIES 

Salaries 

Supplies 

Equipment 

INSURANCE 

Police Liability 

Special Multi Peril 

Automobile 

Workers Comp 

Insurance Claims/Deductible 

REGIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 

Upper Valley Lake Sunapee Reg. Planning 

Tourism Promotion (Info Booth) 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Salaries 

Patrolmen’s Overtime 

Contract Overtime 

Holiday Pay 

Part Time Officers 

Uniforms 

Equipment 

Dues 

Radio Repair 

Supplies 

Telephone 

Cruiser Maintenance 

Training Expense 

Law Publications 

Computer Use Fee 

Service Contracts 

Special Equipment 

Medical Expense 

New Employee Expenses 

Prosecutor 

ad 

3,867.96 

Say 2 

162.04 

187.50 

3,475.52 

1,000.00 

1,390.21 

190.00 

9,075.00 

11,488.27 

1,185.03 

2,587.44 

12,584.00 

28,144.00 

13,920.00 

56,848.00 

1,249.40 

2,957.00 

4,000.00 

170,290.39 

14,795.37 

5,176.50 

4,645.39 

6,419.80 

3,553.64 

2,066.65 

264.00 

2,000.51 

4,849.36 

11,041.20 

3,468.56 

2,803.17 

1,044.22 

3,600.00 

ly, 

2,915.00 

S11:20 

270.00 

5,000.00 

75,909.39 

15,260.74 

112,745.40 

6,957.00 

246,225.88 



FIRE DEPARTMENT 

Salaries 

Telephone 

Supplies/Tools 

New Equipment 

Equipment Maintenance 

Dues 

Replacement Equipment 

Protective Equipment 

Medical Expense 

Radios 

Training 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

Director’s Salary 

Generator Maintenance 

POLICE DISPATCH 

Salaries 

Overtime 

Part Time & Training 

Shift Differential 

Holiday Pay 

Supplies 

Uniforms 

Equipment 

Service Contract 

Medical Expense 

HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION 

Salaries 

Overtime 

Extra Hire 

Telephone 

Supplies 

Staff Training 

Medical Expense 

Uniforms 

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS 

Equipment Maintenance 

Equipment Hire 

Gravel 

Sand 

Salt 

Cold Patch 

Asphalt 

29,111.25 

879.55 

1,029.94 

1,269.90 

53731455 

430.00 

2,920.00 

2,623.11 

1,131.60 

1,746.38 

125.00 

300.00 

242.50 

65,365.14 

3332.20 

35,1850) 

4,231.20 

2,396.76 

1,300.40 

550.05 

1,481.34 

2,325.00 

725.00 

132,573.48 

16,670.42 

8,211.24 

PAL 

1,501.81 

PY 

207.50 

1,848.90 

31,478.87 

9,930.00 

14,021.67 

30,874.22 

14,937.63 

773.92 

10,357.30 

58 

46,998.28 

542.50 

118,892.29 

163,661.27 



Tires 

Supplies 

Signs 

Lubrication Supply 

Culverts 

Drainage 

Radios 

Tools Maintenance 

Protective Clothing 

Calcium Chloride 

Highway Paving/Construction 

Tree Take Down 

BRIDGE MAINTENANCE 

Bridges 

STREET LIGHTING 

Expenses 

SOLID WASTE ADMINISTRATION 

Salaries 

Overtime 

Staff Training 

Telephone 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 

Equipment Maintenance 

Supplies 

Gaylords 

Metal Disposal 

Monitoring Wells 

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 

NH/VT Solid Waste Project 

SOLID WASTE CLEANUP 

Hazardous Waste Day 

SEWAGE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 

Expenses 

HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

Salaries 

Testing & Expenses 

59 

4,191.84 

aed dl ke, 

3,816.03 

Ciel) 

2109.29 

1,864.01 

1,077.30 

2,563.09 

|e ae 

7,195.20 

199,787.67 

675.00 

8,659.96 

22,9) 0:91 

56,199.44 

4,971.52 

339d 

833.53 

4,696.56 

1,276.02 

39.00 

348.00 

27,553.00 

249,461.52 

2,922.60 

375,780.00 

2,950.00 

Boyce 

342,725.05 

8,659.96 

229594 

62,344.26 

ue) ce 

249,461.52 

2,922.60 

375,780.00 

3,809.29 



HEALTH AGENCIES AND HOSPITALS 

New London Ambulance 

Lake Sunapee Region VNA 

Council on Aging 

WELFARE—ADMINISTRATION 

Welfare Officer 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL WELFARE 

Community Action Program 

WELFARE—VENDOR PAYMENTS 

Vendor Payments 

PARKS AND RECREATION 

Salaries 

Supplies 

Telephone 

Ads 

TRACY MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

Expenses 

PATRIOTIC PURPOSES 

American Legion/Memorial Day Service 

OTHER CULTURE—ARCHIVES 

Archives Expenses 

CONSERVATION—ADMINISTRATION 

Expenses 

CARE OF TREES 

Expenses 

BONDED DEBT 

Principal Payments 

BONDED DEBT—INTEREST 

Interest Payments 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Police Cruiser 

60 

19,745.00 

11,162.00 

6,000.00 

150.00 

2,188.00 

4,690.94 

25,833.93 

796.87 

266.34 

648.41 

165,480.00 

300.00 

962.90 

1,404.54 

8,066.30 

150,000.00 

74,810.00 

20,840.75 

36,907.00 

150.00 

2,188.00 

4,690.94 

27,545.55 

165,480.00 

300.00 

962.90 

1,404.54 

8,066.30 

150,000.00 

74,810.00 



1 Ton Dump Truck 

CAT Loader 

TRANSFERS TO CAPITAL RESERVES 

Fire Vehicle 

Revaluation 

Dispatch Radio Replacement 

Cons. Comm. Land Acquisition 

TOTAL—1995 WARRANT 

1994 ENCUMBERED 

GRAND TOTAL 

KEARSARGE REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Assessment 

July 1 1994-June 30, 1995 (Balance due) 

Assessment 

July 1, 1995-June 30, 1996 

TOTAL 

Paid 

Treasurer Kearsarge Regional School 

Balance Due for year ending June 30, 1996 

TOTAL 

61 

31,000.00 

67,216.00 

30,000.00 

30,000.00 

10,000.00 

8,500.00 

$1,332,933.00 

3,908,781.00 

$3,287,214.00 
1,954,500.00 

119,056.75 

78,500.00 

$3,161,294.15 

a7 2229 

$3,218,516.44 

$5,241,714.00 

$5,241,714.00 
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BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S REPORT 

1995 has been a busy year encompassing many interesting events that have yielded us both 

disappointing and rewarding results. Working with the consultant to explore possible organi- 

zational alternatives for the Kearsarge Regional School District has been the time consumer of 

the year. By the time you have this report, you will have received our report on this matter, so 

it will not be repeated here. We learned about the state laws governing schools and how they 

are interpreted by the respective state agencies. Learning about the educational process and 

how it works was an eye opener in itself. However, the message that keeps repeating over 

and over is that until the Department of Education, the Legislature of New Hampshire or the 

Supreme Court of this state changes the method of funding education, unrest will continue to 

disrupt the member towns in regional school districts. Working with the educational problem 

was like training a young child to dance - one step forward, two steps back. This, to say the 

least, has been a very frustrating experience. 

The sad part of our year was the death of our Chief of Police, Stuart F. Sidmore, Jr. Stu 

was a friend to all and he is dearly missed by his fellow police officers, co-workers and 

friends. His funeral service, conducted by the New Hampshire Chiefs of Police, was an out- 

standing memorial tribute for his family and friends. Our thanks also go to the Merrimack 

Sheriff’s Department for providing services at the funeral and relieving our police force so 

they could attend. 

The Police and Dispatch Departments have had changes in staff: David Seastrand has 

become Chief of Police, Ben Cushing is the Dispatch Supervisor and Chris Currier is now in 

charge of the DARE program. Good luck to this new team in the many challenges they will 

have in the future. 

The employees have chosen representatives from their respective departments to partici- 

pate on an Employees Action Committee. This committee offers a forum to any and all 

employees to bring forward ideas, suggestions and complaints for review, discussion and 

action. 

A working Joint Loss Management Committee made up of 1/2 management, 1/2 non-man- 

agement has been working hard since April and has completed a plan that will help to keep 

New London a safe place to work. 

Congratulations to Lois Marshall, our Town Clerk and Tax Collector, who at the New 

England Municipal Clerks Institute was elected to be Vice Chair and Secretary to the Board of 

Directors. 

The Solid Waste District has had another year of turmoil and additional legal expenses, but 

thanks to legal arbitration and the efforts of our representatives: Bryan Jones, Mark Kaplan 

and Ilene Healy there may be some light at the end of the tunnel and even a reduction of costs 

that we pay to dispose of solid waste. This group has given much time and effort on behalf of 

the Town of New London. 

A committee, which includes Sydney Crook, Peter Stanley and April Whittaker, has been 

working with a group from Sutton to investigate the Kezar Lake watershed and the protection 

thereof. 1996 should see the development of this committee’s recommendations. Thanks to 

Prent Horne and Ted Parkhurst for shouldering the responsibility of testing Kezar Lake on a 

regular basis. It would appear that based on the tests taken this past summer there will be no 

need to treat the lake this year. Thanks for the good work!!! 
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Bob Nelson was appointed Director of Emergency Management. He has developed an 

Emergency Management Plan which was approved in 1995. At the end of the year, Bob 

requested that Lois Rockwood be appointed Deputy Director (approved.) 

At the Transfer Station, you have seen an expansion of the recycling to accommodate a 

safer operation. When completed, you will no longer have to compete with machinery to do 

your recycling. 

The Highway Department has completed the much needed salt and sand shed for protec- 

tion of an environmental hazard. The Town crew to date, under the leadership of Richard 

Lee, has done an outstanding job in keeping the roads and sidewalks clear of the unexpected 

major snowfall dumped on us so far this winter. 

Last June, we hosted eight participants from all corners of the world who were in the 

United States to gain insights into how government works in the States. Once again, New 

London was chosen as a small community to be visited. Thanks go out to all who made those 

five days a success. We made some new friends!!! 

The Park & Ride which was across the road from the Transfer Station had to be moved in 

order to expand. It is now located on the other side of the interstate on Route #103B. We 

think you will agree that it is a much needed improvement. 

In 1995 there were 112 building permits issued, of which 29 permits were of new construc- 

tion. If you are going to build or make any changes in your dwelling, you should check on 

the building permit process at the Town Office. 

One of the best success stories of the year was the Community Profile - over 200 partici- 

pants provided the impetus to put our community under a microscope. The printed format 

and results are available from the Town Offices for those of you who may not have already 

picked one up. If nothing else, we learned how much everyone enjoyed the Pot Luck supper! 

Thanks to Thelma Kaplan and her Steering Committee and Carol Fraley for valiantly volun- 

teering to type the report. 

Saved until last is the most important part of this message. We the Board of Selectmen of 

your town, thank each and every one of you who helped us with your time to make this town 

a better place for all of us. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

JAMES W. MORELAND, Chairman 

APRIL D. WHITTAKER 

HAROLD W. BUKER, JR. 

New London Board of Selectmen 

67 



ROAD AGENT REPORT FOR 1995 

CEMETERY DIVISION 

In 1995, we were able to hire the same two gentlemen that worked for us during 1994 in 

the cemeteries. They started in late May and were able to get the cemeteries ready for 

Memorial Day weekend which is a big one for us. During the summer they repaired and reset 

some of the stones, along with the mowing, trimming and the addition of loam in some of the 

low spots. They worked until fall to help clean up most of the leaves. 

HIGHWAY DIVISION 

The Highway Department had a very busy year in 1995. We hired a summer helper which 

worked out very well. She was able to take care of the Commons, Transfer Station, Bucklin 

Beach and other areas that we mow. She was also very helpful in other minor maintenance 

areas. During the spring we had clean up and some repairs to do. The summer of 1995 was 

busy doing culvert repairs and replacement on many roads in town. We also built a couple of 

drain systems to cure problems we have had for a long time. These were on Hastings Landing 

Road, Barrett Road and Edmunds Road. Our major job this summer was to grind and pave 

Shaker Street and Barrett Road. During these jobs we dug rocks, cleaned ditches and 

installed new culverts. Also on Shaker Street we redesigned the intersection of Mountain 

Road to make it more of a T Style. The stop is now on Mountain Road not on Shaker Street. 

In addition we helped install a new water main into the firehouse. We also paved the follow- 

ing roads: Old King Hill Road North, Old King Hill Road, Hominy Pot Road, the Route 11 

end of Old Main Street, Hillside Road, Hastings Landing, Lovering Lane, Whipple Court, 

Lyon Brook Drive, and Edmunds Road. During the fall we were doing regular maintenance 

and had some minor washouts the first two weekends, but on the third, had some major ones. 

Sections of Pleasant Street, Lamson Lane, Bunker Road, Columbus Avenue, Forest Acres and 

Stoney Brook Road also endured washouts. We made most of the repairs and then had snow. 

There will be a lot of repair work to complete in the spring of 1996. 

RECYCLING DIVISION 

The recycling department has been very busy during the past year. The volume of recy- 

cling has continued to increase. The amount we were paid for cardboard and newspaper 

soared early in the year and dropped at the end of the year. As you have seen, the addition at 

the Transfer Station is complete. We will move the bailer in and be in operation early in 

1996. Also what you do not see at the Transfer Station is our Used Oil Furnace. This is at the 

Highway Department to heat one of our truck garages. We are now accepting used motor oil 

at the Highway Department ONLY and in see-through plastic jugs such as milk bottles. The 

hours are Monday-Friday 7 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. We will not accept oil that is contaminated with 

water or antifreeze. We do not accept old gasoline. 

In closing, I would like to thank all my staff, the Board of Selectmen and the Citizens of 

the Town of New London. If you have any questions or comments, we are always ready to 

listen. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

RICHARD E. LEE 

Road Agent 
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CEMETERY COMMISSION REPORT FOR 1995 

The three cemeteries in New London continue to be maintained in excellent condition. 

The efforts of Kenneth Follensbee, Cathy Ford and John Wiltshire are greatly appreciated by 

the Commission. Several lot owners have commented on how friendly and helpful these three 

have been while working in the cemeteries. We would also like to thank Road Agent Richard 

Lee for his management and advice. 

Town Tree Warden Robert Fraley supervised the planting of several shade and ornamental 

trees in various locations throughout the three cemeteries. 

There are 34 interments in the New London Cemeteries during 1995. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

WALTON W. CHADWICK 

MARION E. HAFNER 

CHARLES M. HAFNER 

Cemetery Commissioners 

REPORT OF THE TREE WARDEN 

During 1995 the Town spent $4,636.30 planting trees. In addition the Town spent 

$3,430.00 on the maintenance of existing trees. 

Unfortunately no gifts were received this year for the tree program. Gifts are encouraged 

whether they be memorial or otherwise. 

Recently the Tree Warden has taken an inventory of all trees planted by the Town over the 

last twelve years. The total is 221 trees. Of this total 47 are flowering and mostly located on 

the greens or in the cemeteries. 

Because of the Town’s interest in urban forestry and maintenance, New London received 

the Tree City USA award for the ninth consecutive year. 

At the suggestion of Jim Well, our resident Arborist, a higher percentage of decorative 

trees will be planted in the future. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

ROBERT FRALEY 

Tree Warden 

WELFARE REPORT FOR 1995 

During 1995 there were 3 requests for emergency welfare assistance from the Town rang- 

ing from emergency transportation to housing costs. The total cost was $4,690.94 . Future 

Town costs for welfare may increase significantly because of potential actions by the Federal 

Congress as well as the State Legislature. Some of these costs may be assessed indirectly 

through the county tax portion of the local property tax. 

ALF JACOBSON 

Welfare Officer 
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1995 NH/VT Solid Waste Project Report 

The past year was one of significant accomplishment providing benefits to all member 

towns over the next 12 years as the contract for Solid Waste disposal at Wheelabrator’s incin- 

erator in Claremont plays out. Two major negotiations with Wheelabrator were completed. 

The first established a resolution to some long standing disputes dating back to 1992 that 

had to be completed before contract negotiations could begin. The second reached agreement 

on a new accord with Wheelabrator that sets the stage for much lower costs for the disposal of 

waste in the years ahead. The impact of these concluded negotiations if ratified by the mem- 

ber towns will result in the lowering of the tipping fee. This is the first time in the life of the 

Project that such a reduction has been achieved. 

The resolution of a troublesome dispute initiated by some NH District member towns (the 

Project comprises a NH District and a VT District) was also notable, though costly. This dis- 

pute finally went to arbitration and the decisions handed down were strongly against the 

group seeking to change the governance of the Project. It is good to have this issue complet- 

ed. 

Looking ahead, much work is still to be done in building a cooperative spirit between the 

two Districts, and within the NH District. There is also an important problem to be settled 

with the Town of Acworth who unilaterally withdrew from the Project and NH District leav- 

ing in question their financial obligations to the Project and the NH District. This action has 

precipitated a legal response from the Project and the issue should be in court sometime late 

in 1996. 

It will be the challenge of the new management organization now running the Project to 

find a way through these difficult problems and to ensure that the new low cost operation con- 

tinues. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

District Representatives: 

BRYAN JONES 

MARK KAPLAN 

ILENE M. HEALY 

70 



TRANSFER HAUL 

Town Weight (tons) 

RECYCLING 

Material Sold (tons) 

Revenue ($) 

Cost Avoidance 

Total Benefit 

RECYCLING STATISTICS 

Newspaper 

Cardboard 

Glass 

Light Metal (Scrap) 

Steel Cans (Tin) 

Aluminum Foil & Plates 

Aluminum Cans 

Misc. Metal (Hazardous) 

Tires 

Batteries (Home) 

Waste Oil 

Plastic (HDPE Colored) 

Plastic Bottles (HDPE) 

Plastic (PETE) 

Miscellaneous 

Total 

1995 

RECYCLING REPORT 

1995 1994 

2,584.29 2:535.62 

777.05 678.34 

$36,223.90 $13,992.30 

74,985.42 65,460.00 

111,209.32 79,452.30 

1995 Year End 

WEIGHT REVENUE 

482,660 $12,719.20 

568,525 13,558.40 

268,148 

177,560 763.85 

29,273 2,050.94 

476 95.02 

9,305 3,809.73 

1,507 26.16 

10,580 2,661.60 

6,068 539.00 

1,554,102 $36,223.90 
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POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT FOR 1995 

Nineteen ninety-five has been a year filled with emotion, along with many challenges. 

With the passing of our friend, Chief Stuart F. Sidmore, Jr. an 18 year veteran of the New 

London Police Department, we have found it hard being unable to turn to his reassuring smile 

and his gentle nature to calm us. As I work towards completing my first year as your Police 

Chief, I am excited about the many new challenges that lie ahead, but am ever mindful that 

Stu is truly irreplaceable. 

Don Kimtis continues to lead our Cadet program, while Chris Currier is in the Middle 

School instructing D.A.R.E. David White is in charge of training and the evidence room. Ed 

Kinzer is responsible for our maintenance program and handles the criminal cases that are 

sensitive in nature. Our officers are involved with many other aspects of law enforcement 

other than patrol. David Zuger has been hired as our newest full-time officer. Julie Saxby is 

responsible for our case management, and all correspondence with insurance claims. 

We are continuing to work as a TEAM in order to provide you with more community ori- 

ented law enforcement. With your support we hope to institute a bicycle patrol this spring. 

This will enable us to be more accessible to you, and be more versatile in our enforcement 

efforts, while maintaining high morale, and physical fitness. 

The members of your Police Department look forward to working for you this upcoming 

year and as always, thank you for your continued support. 

Our activity for the year has been included for your comparison. In general, the calls for 

service have gone up. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

DAVID J. SEASTRAND 

Chief of Police 
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NEW LONDON POLICE DEPARTMENT 

CALLS FOR SERVICE 1995 1994 
Responded to Burglar Alarms 414 496 
Assisted New London Fire Department 58 70 
Money Escorts 96 95 
Missing Persons Reports Ly 16 
Domestic Complaints 19 30 
Complaints on Vehicles 292 162 
Suspicious Persons 108 81 
Aid New London Ambulance 224 210 
Suspicious Vehicles 129 107 
Animal Complaints 205 128 
Traffic Assists 113 98 
Paperwork Relays 7 3 
Vehicle Lock-Outs 74 66 
Noise Complaints 49 26 
Property Checks 243 § 
Road Hazard Complaints 74 57 
Harassing Phone Call Complaints 151 67 
Assist Other Departments 312 313 
Open Door 83 68 
Motorist Assists 326 353 
Assist Citizen 306 - 
Property/Business Checks 5,661 - 

CRIMINAL ACTIVITY 
Assaults 6 8 
Burglaries 10 1] 
Criminal Mischief Complaints 24 26 
Theft 50 45 
Criminal Threatening 7 0 
Bad Check Cases 4 4 
Possession of Drugs 23 29 
Arson 0 
Unlawful Possession of Alcohol 12 19 
Harassment 8 6 
Criminal Trespass 0 3 
Sexual Assaults 4 2 
Motor Vehicle Thefts 2 0 
Shoplifting 3 - 
Recovered Property 7) - 
Total Arrests 119 - 
Total Lock-Ups 45 - 

MOTOR VEHICLE ACTIVITY 
Summonses 632 620 
Warnings 684 514 
Accident Reports 68 82 
Accidents with Injury 30 19 
Fatal Accidents 0 0 
Non-Reportable Accidents A 116 
DWI Arrests 20 22 
Parking Tickets 124 - 
Defective Equipment Tags Issued 115 . 

MISC. 
Lost and Found Items 88 - 
Lost and Found Animals 46 - 
Criminal Cases 134 - 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 185 - 
Thefts 22 - 
Assist Citizens 306 - 
Criminal Mischief 28 - 
Juvenile Problems 20 - 
Vandalism Complaints 22 - 
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DISPATCH CENTER 

The New London Dispatch Center became operational as of March 31, 1975. The 

Departments dispatched through Dispatch were New London Police, New London Fire, New 

London Ambulance and the New London Highway as well as the Wilmot Police and Wilmot 

Fire Departments. Dispatch received a total of 7,126 phone calls in the first nine months of 

operation. 

Twenty years later the New London Dispatch Center received 40,297 phone calls and dis- 

patches for the following Departments: New London Police, New London Fire, New London 

Ambulance, New London Highway, New London Sewer, New London/Springfield Water 

Precinct, Sunapee Police, Sunapee Fire, Sunapee Fast Squad, Newbury Police, Newbury Fire, 

Wilmot Police, Wilmot Fire, Wilmot Fast Squad, Sutton Police, Springfield Police and the 

Springfield Fast Squad Departments. 

As you can see there has been tremendous growth in the Dispatch Center over the past 

twenty years. The staff is a dedicated group of individuals that stands by our mission state- 

ment; “We are the lifeline between public safety agencies and the communities we serve. 

Constantly improving quality through teamwork and dedication.” 

The Dispatch Center is currently looking into computer programs that will update our sys- 

tems. We have made great strides this past year with computers but still have a lot of work 

ahead of us. 

The staff would like to thank the Citizens of New London, as well as the other communi- 

ties we serve, for their continued support. 

Below you will find a comparison of statistics from 1994 to 1995. 

1995 1994 

Total Phone Calls 40,297 he Wa | 9 | 

Dispatched Ambulance to New London 224 - 

Dispatched Ambulance to Other Towns 351 . 

Dispatched New London Fire Department 58 70 

Burn Permits Issued 15 182 

Aid to Public 183 170 

Animals Lost/Stray 46 61 

Road Hazard Complaints 74 57 

Lost and Found Items 88 87 

Request for House Check 248 374 

Alarm Tests Ly - 

Alarm Problems > - 

Alarms Requesting Police Response 414 496 

Respectfully Submitted, 

BEN CUSHING 

Dispatch Supervisor 
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EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Emergency Management Director - Robert M. Nelson 

Emergency Management Committee 

Director - Robert Nelson 

Deputy Director - Lois Rockwood 

David Seastrand 

Walter Partridge 

Nancy Erickson 

Ben Cushing 

Richard Lee 

Ilene Healy 

The New London Emergency Management Committee, formerly known as the Civil 

Defense Committee, has been meeting monthly during 1995. 

The Emergency Management Plan for the Town has been reviewed, revised and expanded. 

The purpose of the Plan is to make each organization and department aware of its responsibil- 

ities in all hazard/emergency operations. This Plan, upon being implemented by the 

Selectmen, will provide the basis for coordinating protection actions prior to, during and after 

any type of disaster. The Plan is prepared to conform to guidelines established by the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA); U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission; and the 

New Hampshire Emergency Management Agency; and is in concert with the State of New 

Hampshire Emergency Management Plan. 

The Pleasant Lake Dam Emergency Action Plan was prepared cooperatively with Ross 

Stevens, and has been submitted to the State of New Hampshire Water Resources Divisions 

for their approval. 

State sponsored training programs on related subjects have been attended by members of 

this Committee. Planning meetings were held with representatives from the Red Cross, the 

State Office of Emergency Planning, the Kearsarge Regional School District, Colby-Sawyer 

College, the Health Officer and the New London/Springfield Water Precinct and Sewer 

Commission. 

If you have questions, comments and or suggestions regarding the work of the Emergency 

Management Committee, please call the Director or any of the Committee members. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

ROBERT M. NELSON 

Director 
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FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT FOR 1995 

What is Carbon Monoxide? Carbon Monoxide (co) is a colorless, odorless, tasteless gas 
that is produced in the combustion of a fuel. Infants, senior citizens and people with coronary 
or respiratory problems are at greater risk, however everyone can be affected. 

Carbon Monoxide is produced by appliances such as gas or oil furnaces, gas refrigerators, 
clothes dryers and water heaters, fireplaces, charcoal grills, gas ranges, wood burning stoves 
and space heaters. It can also enter your home if your car is left running in an attached 
garage. 

You can protect yourself and your family from Carbon Monoxide poisoning by never 
using a barbecue grill indoors, check the vents on all heaters and appliances and have your 
heating system checked and serviced by a qualified technician. 

Do not use unvented space heaters to heat your home and install a U.L. approved Carbon 
Monoxide detector, New London Fire Department recommends one with a digital read out. 
However, if your home does not have a smoke detector, install one of them instead, because 

more people die in house fires each year than of Carbon Monoxide poisoning. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
WALTER E. PARTRIDGE, JR. 
Fire Chief 

NEW LONDON FIRE DEPARTMENT INCIDENT REPORT SUMMARY 1995 
31 Vehicle Accident* 
24 Wire Down 
is Alarm Response* 
13 Helicopter Assist 
12 Company Drill 
10 Other 

Vehicle Fire* 
Chimney Fire 
False Alarm* 
Mutual Assistance Other 
Fire Prevent Training 
Brush Fire 
Gas Odor Check 
Mlegal Burn 
Structure Fire 
Electrical Fire 
Extrication from Automobile* 
Missing Person Search 
Smoke Report 
Public Assistance 
Mutual Assistance Structure 
Kitchen Fire 
Furnace Malfunction 
Furniture Fire 

Water in Cellar 
Rescue 

Hazardous Material Spill 
Disaster Drill 
Wood Stove Malfunction 
Sprinkler Malfunction 
Flood Control 
Hospital Drill 

*May be duplicated count: Vehicle Accident may also be reported under Vehicle Fire or 
Extrication from Automobile; Alarm Response may also be reported under False Alarm. 
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REPORT OF TOWN FOREST FIRE WARDEN AND STATE FOREST RANGER 

1995 REPORT 

In calendar year 1995, our three, (3) leading causes of fires were Children, Non-Permit fires 

not properly extinguished and Smoking Materials. 

Violations of RSA 224:27 II, the fire permit law and the other burning laws of the State of 

New Hampshire, are misdemeanors punishable by fines of up to $2,000 and/or a year in jail. 

Violators are also liable for all fire suppression costs. 

To aid your Forest Fire Warden, Fire Department and State Forest Fire Officials, contact your 

local Warden or Fire Department to find out if a permit is required. This also helps to prevent 

unnecessary response to a controlled burn. 

1995 Fire Statistics 

Forest Ranger Reported Fires Fires Reported by County 

Number of Fires for Cost Share Payment 465 Belknap 1] 

Carroll 50 

Acres Burned 437 Cheshire 39 

Coos 17 

Suppression cost $147,000+ Grafton 26 
Hillsborough 7] 

Lookout Tower Reported Fires 555 Merrimack 49 

Rockingham 106 

Visitors to Towers 26,165 Strafford 78 

Sullivan 18 

Number of Fires Local Community Suppression Cost 

Local communities and the State share the cost of suppression on a 50/50 basis. The State of 

New Hampshire operates 15 fire towers, 2 mobile patrols and 3 contract aircraft patrols. This 

early detection and reports from citizens aid the quick response from the local fire depart- 

ments. 

REMEMBER, ONLY YOU CAN PREVENT FOREST FIRES!” 

Yibeased A Aleae 
orest Ranger 
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SEWER COMMISSION REPORT FOR 1995 

During 1995 the Sewer Commission has continued its commitment toward actively 

improving, upgrading and installing modernized equipment. This is part of the Commission’s 

goal of having in place a comprehensive preventative maintenance program. In conjunction 

with this goal, the Commission has developed a long term replacement/rehabilitation plan in 

its budget in an attempt to control the increase to the user fees on an annual basis. 

The Georges Mills pump station received the bulk of the preventative maintenance work 

this year. This pump station, located in a brick building across from Lake Sunapee on Route 

11, takes all the wastewater from New London and pumps it up and over the hill in Georges 

Mills to the Town of Sunapee for treatment. This pump station has a complicated control and 

alarm system. This year the entire control system was updated and an overhaul and rebuild- 

ing of the two major pumps at this sight was done. 

The Sewer Commission continued with its project of opening up and clearing all its right- 

of-ways in the system. Although this might appear esthetically offensive at first, it is a neces- 

sary part of keeping the underground piping system free and clear of roots and allows the 

department access to inspect and repair any of these structures. This clearing of the right-of- 

ways will be a continuing project annually. 

The Commission continues to meet regularly with representatives from the Town of 

Sunapee Water and Sewer Commission. The Joint group this year took a comprehensive look 

at the reed system in place at Sunapee, used to dewater and filter some of the biosolids. These 

reeds need to be cut back and cleaned around once every seven years. These reeds have 

worked very efficiently for the system. They are now seven years old and in need of cleaning. 

This project will be undertaken during the reeds dormant state. With some help from mother 

nature, these reeds will be replanted and ready for spring. 

1995, although having a dry summer, was a very wet year in large doses both in the spring 

and the fall. It was noted at these times of large rainfall that the flow from New London 

increased significantly. The Sewer Commission would like to take this opportunity to state 

that it is against the Town Ordinance to have any sump pump from any building discharging 

into a town sewer system. These pumps are to be daylighted onto the private owners proper- 

ty. The Commission has a right to send a representative to inspect a property at any time for 

violation of this ordinance. The Commission is asking all users to please look at their sump 

pump setup and if in violation of the ordinance, to voluntarily remove and reinstall this pump 

into another discharge system. Thank you. 

The New London Sewer Commission meets regularly on every Wednesday morning from 

8:00 to 10:00 a.m. Your comments and suggestions are helpful to the Commission to serve 

the users and community better. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

ANN S. BEARDSLEY 

JOHN A. CUMMINGS 
WILLIAM J. FACCONE, JR. 

Sewer Commissioners 
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HEALTH OFFICER’S REPORT FOR 1995 

Our biggest health concern in New London for 1995 was the arrival of the rabies epidemic 

among our wild animals, particularly raccoons. One raccoon, suspected of being infected, 

was sent to the State Public Health Laboratory for testing with positive results. This proved 
that the local animals were now in the throes of the epidemic. However, only those animals 

causing human exposure to the disease could be sent for lab diagnosis due to the high expense 
of testing and the low level of financial support that our State provides for Public Health 
Services. Nevertheless, a large number of probably rabid animals, mostly raccoons, which 

died around human habitation or were destroyed because of their rabid-like actions, were 

incinerated by Pleasant Lake Veterinary Clinic. The services of Dr. Brian Prescott and his 

staff in performing this important function for the New London area, safely eliminated possi- 

ble sources of infection from the local environment and are greatly appreciated. Although the 

peak of our local rabies epidemic has passed, we will probably see an elevated level of infec- 

tions among foxes during the coming year as the fox strain of rabies invades from the North. 

Stay away from strangely acting and overly friendly acting wild animals is the rule to avoid 

infection from rabid wild animals. You are also urged not to let dogs run free which would 

allow them to tangle with rabid wild animals and to keep all cats and dogs up to date with 
their rabies vaccinations. 

The 1995 rate of infections of giardiasis were at a low endemic level. This public health 

threat will be essentially eliminated for New London/Springfield Water Precinct users next 

spring when the new public water supply source and pumping system will be on line. All 

aspects of the new system are in place with the exception of the pumping station which is 

presently being constructed. The new system will preclude the introduction of infectious 

agents into the drinking water at the source and will eliminate the presence in the water of 
precursors to the formation of carcinogenic trihalomethanes (especially chloroform). 

During 1995 seventy-nine sets of septic system plans were reviewed prior to submission to 

the State. Of these 29 were for new construction or subdivisions with 21 for replacement sys- 

tems and 29 were reviewed as revised and resubmitted plans. During the year 51 sites were 

visited to observe and record test pit data on 128 test pits. This compares to 37 sites with 61 
test pits in 1994. 

Smoking is still one of the most serious public health problems facing our community as 

well as the rest of the world. Public health policy is directed towards prevention of smoking 

among juveniles and teenagers and the protection of the non-smoking public from being sub- 

jected to the dangers of second-hand smoke. The New London Area Smoke Free Coalition is 

working towards these goals in New London and surrounding towns. 

Radon, present in bedrock containing uranium, which is common in the New London area, 

like tobacco smoke, is a long term carcinogen. Combined with smoking, the risk of lung can- 
cer is greatly increased over the threat of radon or smoking alone, both of which are similarly 

severe. Radon gets into homes through openings in basement walls and floors or from water 

pumped into the house from a2 bedrock well drilled in uranium contained granite. Inexpensive 

radon test kits for room air are available from local stores. The New Hampshire Department 

of Environmental Service Laboratory will perform a radon test on water at a nominal cost. 

Sample vials can be obtained from Concord or picked up at the New London Town Hall from 

the Health Officer’s mail basket. 

If you have questions about these or other public health matters, please feel free to contact 

your Health Officer. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
DONALD F. BENT, Ph.D. 
Health Officer 
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TRACY MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

1995 Annual Report 

Tracy Memorial Library completed another active, productive year, experiencing again, 

significant growth in circulation of materials and in use of the buildings and services. In total, 

we circulated 107,019 items, which is most likely the highest per capita circulation of any 

public library in the State. We added 1769 new items to the collection; 612 books were deliv- 

ered to homebound patrons; we borrowed 403 items from other libraries for our patrons and 

loaned 579 items to other libraries. 

During the past year 1033 adults attended library-sponsored programs, and 5543 children 

participated in 157 programs. Many other local and regional groups also made use of the 

Library’s meeting room. 

In April we accepted regretfully the resignation of part-time library assistant, Holly Rice. 

Linda Miller and Beth Perkins, who are sharing the position Holly vacated, are welcome addi- 

tions to the staff. 

For many reasons we are grateful to the Friends of Tracy Library. The $16,500 raised in 

the membership drive and book sale allowed us to purchase a fax machine and an overhead 

projector, as well as many special materials for the collection. Additionally, the Friends spon- 

sored the quarterly Newsletter and several Library programs, including both winter and sum- 

mer sessions of “Great Decisions,” a spring and fall series of “Book Browsers,” the Fall 

Lecture Series by Colby-Sawyer faculty members, and a special lecture by author Thomas 

Mallon. The Friends also continue to devote countless hours of volunteer effort, assisting 

with the day-to-day operation of the Library and with special events and projects. 

The Library’s offerings for children included several weekly pre-school story hours, after- 

school programs, the summer reading program, bedtime stories, “arts and sciences” programs, 

the special holiday puppet show and party, and, of course, Tomie dePaola’s annual visit. 

Two enhancements to the building are the result of special gifts. One donation allowed us 

to provide lighting both on our flag and in the display cases, which have contained a series of 

marvelous collections graciously loaned by our patrons. We were also delighted to accept the 

gift of a baby grand piano, which now fills the bay window of the meeting room. Its Library 

debut occurred during the annual Holiday Tea, for which Ruth Sisson provided very special 

music. 

After several years of preparation, automation of the Library’s catalog and circulation is 

nearly complete and should be on-line by summer of 1996. The staff looks forward to the 

extra services it can provide when the system is in place. 

The Board and staff of Tracy Memorial Library thank the citizens of New London for their 

generous support. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

ROBERT WALLACE, Chair 

SHERI ENSIGN 

MICHELLE FEINS 

JOHN FLYNN 

HARDY HASENFUSS 

JOAN SWEENY 

BEATSON WALLACE 

Board of Trustees 
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TRACY MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

1995 Annual Report 

Cash on Hand, January 1, 1995 $ 8,909.38 

Income: 

Town Appropriation $165,480.00 
Fund Balances 17505550) 

Fines 3,060.50 

Lost/Damaged Materials 512.20 

Gifts and Memorials 5,507.00 

Non-Resident Fees 5,479.50 

Copier 225225 

Payment/Books Purchased 1,561.57 

Interest S225 

Total Income 201,57 1057 

Expenditures: 

Personnel 146,821.06 

Books and Related Materials 32,897.03 

Supplies 4,474.31 

Maintenance 15,956.61 

Equipment 3,452.73 

Audit 950.00 

Special Projects 250.00 

Public Relations 795.45 

Travel and Dues 546.00 

Misc. Expenses 120.00 

Total Expenses $206,263.19 

Cash on Hand December 31, 1995 fin el Be 

Report of Improvement Fund 

Balance of Funds, January 1, 1995 25,420.29 

Balance of Funds, December 31, 1995 56.505.17 

Other Memorial and Gift Funds 

Balance of Funds, January 1, 1995 51,805.61 

Balance of Funds, December 31, 1995 SSs58 17. 
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RECREATION COMMISSION 

1995 REPORT 

The Recreation Commission continued with its current mission of overseeing the Town 

beaches - Elkins and Bucklin, including facility upkeep and staffing, from Memorial Day 

through Labor Day. 

The 1995 Beach program followed the similar format used in recent years. Beach 

Director, Judy Hatch, joined by Waterfront Supervisor, Eric Ensign, did a phenomenal job in 

staffing the beaches and implementing Red Cross instructional swimming. Lessons were 

offered with mornings at Elkins and afternoons at Bucklin. The beaches were especially 

crowded in Summer ‘95 with continuous days of high temperatures and little rainfall. 

For the first time, the Commission chose to inform residents and taxpayers of the beach 

schedule, regulations and information on swim lessons via a postal mailing. A brief message 

from the Commission helped to communicate to the public at the start of the ‘95 beach sea- 

son. This format proved to be both beneficial and efficient, and will continue for the ‘96 sea- 

son. 

The Commission and staff continued to assist other Town organizations utilize the beach 

facilities, specifically New London Hospital, Ausbon Sargent Land Preservation Trust, Crop 

Walk and ABC Childcare. The Commission is especially grateful to the New London Garden 

Club for their continued work in beautifying the beach areas. 

At Bucklin beach, major plumbing within the bath house was necessary. At Elkins beach, 

Richard Lee had new doors put on the bath house and Bob MacMichael repaired the screen 

doors. Eric Ensign worked to rebuild the jetty at Elkins. 

The appropriation of $2,390.00 from Article 5 of the 1995 Town Warrant allowed for 

improvements at Elkins beach. A new play structure and a wooden bench were purchased as 

permanent fixtures. In addition, Robert Bell formed a birm to re-direct water from the grove 

to the lake for the purpose of decreasing beach erosion. He met with the Town Conservation 

Commission and Pleasant Lake Protective Association for their approval. The Conservation 

Commission requested that any new “sand” needed at the beaches be replaced by the use of 

pea-sized gravel. 

The Commission is excited about where the next few years will lead. We believe that 

there are many more, year-round recreational activities which could be offered by the Town. 

Thus, we submitted a proposal to the Selectboard in November for a Recreation Director to 

help accomplish this goal. We have been directed to work with a committee resulting from 

the “Goals 2001” meeting to develop a specified proposal for 1996. We have also initiated 

dialogue to revitalize ice-skating within the town. 

The Commission looks to 1996 for a few new members and continues to welcome the 

community at any monthly meetings. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

K.C. SLOCUM WRIGHT, Chair 

ROBERT BELL 

TONI BERNS 

SHERI GOLDBERG-KEENAN 

TIMOTHY VANBLOMMESTEYN 
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CONSERVATION COMMISSION REPORT 1995 

Luther Child retired after many years of devoted service to the Commission. Ruth White 

was appointed to replace him. Sue Andrews and Karen Ebel were each reappointed for 3 

years. Karen was also reappointed to the Planning Board as the voting representative of the 

Commission. Terence Dancy was elected Chairman and Fred Sladen as Secretary. 

In May, the Esther Currier Wildlife Management Area at Low Plain was dedicated. This 

was the culmination of the efforts of many people so that this outstanding nature preserve 

would be protected for the enjoyment of future generations. The work of Debbie Stanley and 

the Ausbon Sargent Land Preservation Trust both on this project and for the Commission 

throughout the year is acknowledged with many thanks. 

The Webb Forest Interpretive Trail has now been cleared and blazed along its entire 4-mile 

route. More than 30 numbered trail markers have been installed. This new trail, together with 

a trail map to be available next spring, are designed to inform about good sustainable forest 

practices. This is a valuable addition to our extensive trail system. 

Plans for a forest maintenance program for the Phillips Memorial Preserve was reviewed 

with neighboring property owners who had expressed concern that the Commission’s propos- 

als were too ambitious. At a subsequent tour of the preserve, we had the chance to explain the 

very limited extent of the intended program. Further action on this program is deferred until 

winter 1996. 

The numbers of people using our trails are increasing, as indicated by the many hundreds 

of maps distributed to visitors at both the Low Plain and Philbrick Cricenti Bog and the sales 

of the new map of the trail system. 

Our continuing program for assuring the long term protection of the Town’s “prime wet- 

lands” included working with the Planning Board on a Zoning Ordinance amendment that 

establishes a no-disturbance buffer strip around these properties. Also, agreement in principle 

subject to Town approval, has been reached on the purchase of a conservation easement on a 

9-acre wetland area adjacent to the Esther Currier Wildlife Management Area. 

The Commission is actively involved with the Town of Sutton in studies of Lyon Brook 

watershed as affecting Kezar Lake. Also, we are participants in ongoing studies on non-point 

source pollution of Lake Sunapee Protective Association. 

The trail maintenance continues to be an important role for the Commission. Work on the 

board replacement in the Philbrick-Cricenti Bog is a major effort. Also the display of regular- 

ly updated wildlife and plant information at the entrance of both the Bog and Low Plain has 

been reestablished. The work of dedicated volunteers continues to assure the quality of this 

extensive trail network. Cooperation of the Garden Club and the SRK Greenway Coalition is 

gratefully acknowledged. 

The Commission was honored by the New England Wild Flower Society at its 1995 

Annual Meeting with the Homer Lucas Landscape Award for its work on the preservation of 

the Philbrick-Cricenti Bog. The Commission also received an award from the Lake Sunapee 

Protective Association for contributions to protecting the environment. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

TERENCE E. DANCY, Chair 
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PLANNING BOARD REPORT FOR 1995 

The New London Planning Board conducted 22 meetings during 1995. The Planning 

Board held numerous public hearings during which the following final applications were 

approved: 

Six Minor Subdivisions 

Two Major Subdivisions 

One Major Subdivision and Cluster Development 

Five Annexations 

Eight Site Plans 

The Annual Update of the Capital Improvements Program (CIP) was reviewed and 

approved by the Planning Board. The CIP Update covers the years from 1996 through 2005. 

The New London Zoning Ordinance was reviewed and proposed amendments were 

reviewed at two public hearings. The amendments were then placed before the Town voters 

at the Town Meeting. Seven changes to the zoning ordinance were subsequently approved. 

In the continued effort to update the Town Master Plan, the New London Planning Board 

helped to coordinate the very successful Community Profile conducted in November 1995. 

The Planning Board would like to extend its thanks to all those who participated during the 

weekend. The Planning Board will be paying close attention to the Profile Report during the 

Master Plan Update Process. 

The Planning Board regularly conducts meetings on the second and fourth Tuesday of 

each month, please feel free to attend these meetings and offer any input and contributions 

you may feel appropriate. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

LAURIE DICLERICO, Chair 

New London Planning Board 
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ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

1995 REPORT 

JANUARY 4, 1995 

New London Hospital for a Special Exception to the terms of Article XI, Section E(3) of the 

Zoning Ordinance, to fill 1,900 sq. ft. of wetland to accommodate a parking lot expansion and 

driveway access on property located at 270 County Road (Tax Map 72, Lot 39) GRANTED 

JANUARY 19, 1995 

John and Louise Chowanski for a Special Exception to the terms of Article XV, Section C(2) 

of the Zoning Ordinance for a bed and breakfast in the ARR zone on property presently 

owned by Harold and Pearl Jennison located at 176 King Hill Road (Tax Map 129, Lot 3) 

GRANTED 

MARCH 16, 1995 

Monetta Properties, Inc. for a Special Exception to the terms of Article XI, Section E(1) of the 

Zoning Ordinance to fill approximately 1,230 sq. ft. of forested wetland to develop a cul-de- 

sac on property located at 69 Newport Road (Tax Map 58, Lot 6) GRANTED 

MAY 24, 1995 

Lake Sunapee Country Club, Inc. for a Special Exception to the terms of Article XI, Section 

E(1) of the Zoning Ordinance to access a proposed homesite for a single family dwelling by 

needing to add two culverts and crossing a brook to tie in to the existing sewer system on 

property located at 131 Route 11, (Tax Map 110, Lot 6) GRANTED 

JULY 14, 1995 

William and Gladys Dowd for a Variance to the terms of Article XIV, Section III-B of the 

Zoning Ordinance to add an addition to the present structure on property located at 30 Camp 

Sunapee Road (Tax Map 45, Lot 35) DENIED 

SEPTEMBER 6, 1995 

Ralph Lapham and Kenneth Miller for a Variance to the terms of Article II, Section 8A of the 

Zoning Ordinance to replace a failing septic system within 75 foot setback from the edge of a 

public body of water on property located at 37 Elkins Road (Tax Map 77, Lot 23A) GRANT- 

ED 

SEPTEMBER 27, 1995 

William McElwain for a Variance to the terms of Article XII, Section B of the Zoning 

Ordinance to construct a drive over land that is 25% and greater in slope on property located 

at 18 Herrick Cove Lane (Tax Map 91, Lot 7) GRANTED 

OCTOBER 11, 1995 

Ronald and Beverly Freeman for a Special Exception to the terms of Article XIX, C(7) and 

Article II, Section 2(b) of the Zoning ordinance to add 1,200 cubic yards of fill to level side 

yard to eliminate the 8 foot drop off on property located at 17 Gay Farm Road (Tax Map 57, 

Lot 1) GRANTED 

OCTOBER 11, 1995 

William and Gladys Dowd for a Variance to the terms of Article XIV, Section III-B of the 

Zoning Ordinance to enclose existing deck structures and screen porch into heated living 

space within the setback from the lake on property located at 30 Camp Sunapee Road, (Tax 

Map 45, Lot 35) GRANTED 

BETTY HERRICK, Chairman 

Zoning Board of Adjustment 
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HISTORY AND ARCHIVES 

During 1995 this committee held its monthly meetings in conjunction witn the committee 

for the update of the Town History. These meetings, held the first Wednesday of the month, 

have concentrated on organization and procedure, sending business and organization ques- 

tionnaires, refining the Family Register form and listening to a second possible publisher - 

just to mention a few items of business. Betty and Lindsay Collins are still giving countless 

‘hours in compiling a list of eligible residents to be included in the Family Register. Several 

other volunteers have been helping them. Doris Cutter has been adding addresses to the list 

as well as working with obituaries and information from family folders. Arrolyn Vernon has 

also been doing many tasks pertinent to the new history. All the time and energy given by the 

members of both committees and others are greatly appreciated. This is not an easy job and 

in months to follow, the call will go out for others to help with upcoming jobs. We hope you 

will respond favorably to this project. 

During the year, a resident of Grantham, interested in the procedure of producing a town 

history, was a visitor to the archives. Also, a member of the Henniker Historical Society came 

to learn of ways to set up an archives and also shared their problems of finding a suitable 

meeting place and storage place for the society. 

Once again a brief history of New London, using photographs in the archives was given 

to a group of gentlemen from Eritrea, Columbia, Georgia, India, Philippines, Romania, Sri 

Lanka and Turkey. This session was part of their five day stay in New London to learn about 

small town government. 

This year the archives has received more photographs and New London memorabilia 

(examples: April and May 1945 New London airplane observation charts during WWII; 1995 

Veterans Monument Dedication material from the Masons). Histories of Bedford, Grantham, 

Grafton and Lebanon were donated or purchased. Our collection is growing! A cookbook 

display was set up in the Tracy Library by several members of the committee using cook- 

books of New London origin. There were more than you might think! More research of 

houses and land is still being done by Hope Howard and Barbara Stearns is keeping the 

Historical Society materials in order as well as being in charge of the Oral History project. 

The archives has purchased a five foot table (space is at a premium) and five more folding 

chairs. 

We are very pleased and grateful when people make donations of New London connected 

items. It makes our town archives grow and we, the volunteers, are proud of what we have. 

We hope you are too. “The latch string is out” to YOU. I am but a phone call away and 

would be happy to show YOUR archives. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

MARGARET L. MORELAND 

Town Archivist 
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TRUSTEES OF TRUST FUNDS REPORT 

The Trustees of the Trust Funds have revised the investment policy of the Cemetery Trust 

Fund and Library Trust Fund this year. First, custodial fees have been eliminated. 

Second, it was agreed to put approximately two thirds of the assets into US Treasury 

securities. We have laddered these bonds over a seven to ten year period. This process will 

average major changes in interest rates. Each year about ten percent of the bond portfolio will 

mature and be reinvested. 

Third, because growth of principal continues to be an objective, it was decided to place 

one-third of the Trusts into a Standard and Poor 500 index fund. Index funds have outper- 

formed seventy-five percent of all mutual funds for the past ten years. The Trustees decided, 

therefore, that this diversification would help the long term performance of the Trusts. This 

change has been completed in the Cemetery Fund. Budgetary restraints precluded changes in 

the Library Fund until 1996. Equity changes in the Library Fund have begun and will be 

completed during the fourth quarter of this year. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

RICHARD BRADY 

SHELBY BLUNT 

MARTIN FEINS 
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ANNUAL REPORT OF 

THE TOWN OF NEW LONDON BANDSTAND COMMITTEE 

As I write this, the Mary D. Haddad Memorial Bandstand on Sargent Common is wearing 

its holiday finery further enhanced by the seasonal snowfall, which adds to the magical charm 

of this marvelous structure. The Committee is most grateful to both the New London Area 

Chamber of Commerce and the New London Garden Club for their efforts in maintaining sea- 

sonal decor for the bandstand, the floral decorations add so much to the beauty of the struc- 

ture. 

This past summer marked the seventh annual summer of concerts. Through the generosity 

of local business underwriters, the Committee was able to present a season of seven concerts. 

The season was marked by its variety and the inclusion of several “new to the Bandstand” 

performance groups mixed with several favorites invited for return engagements. The diversi- 

ty of bands available appears never-ending and the Committee each year needs to make 

“hard” decisions when booking these musical attractions. It is our desire to please the broad 

spectrum of audience members that gather each Friday for an evening of musical entertain- 

ment. 

At present, an eighth concert season is being scheduled for summer 1996 through the tire- 

less efforts of Ruth Sisson, our Program Coordinator. Also, our hard-working community 

liaison, Jim Moreland, has already lined-up the underwriters for 1996. Without this support, 

the Committee could not continue its work without the expenditure of tax dollars. It is our 

hope that the audience recognizes this contribution and will express its appreciation to those 

underwriters. 

The summer season could not have happened without the help of many people who assist 

in many ways: moving chairs, preparing refreshments for the musicians, helping “police” the 

Common after the concerts and being supportive of this community effort. In particular I am 

fortunate to have a true working committee, one that takes on any challenge with a smile and 

a determination to succeed. In addition to those already mentioned, the Committee is fortu- 

nate to count Anna Green, Norman Leger, Lois Marshall, Ellie Norris, Mary Teach and April 

Whittaker among its members. 

The Haddad Memorial Bandstand has become an integral part of the “New London 

Experience,” so much so that it has come to be a symbol of the Town and its ambiance. I 

indicated in last year’s report that the Committee was reviewing a plan to refurbish the 

Haddad Bandstand; it has been agreed upon to begin wood treatment and repainting of the 

structure this spring. So, when the scaffolding goes-up, rest assured that another successful 

season of concerts on Sargent Common will follow. Please join us!!! 

Respectfully Submitted, 

STEVE MENDELSON, Chair 
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NEW LONDON INFORMATION BOOTH 1995 REPORT 

The present New London Information Booth was built by the then New London Chamber 

of Commerce (now The New London Area Chamber of Commerce) in 1979. Built on town 

property, the Information Booth is owned by the Town of New London and maintained and 

managed by the New London Area Chamber of Commerce. The cost of running the booth is 

shared by the Chamber and the Town of New London. A new roof and exterior painting were 

much needed repairs accomplished by the Chamber in the spring of 1995. The beautiful 

flower gardens around the booth are provided and cared for by the New London Garden Club. 

In the summer of 1995 the Information Booth opened on June 17th and was open daily 

through Labor Day from 10:00 to 4:30 and on weekends only from September 17th through 

October 9th, Columbus Day weekend. This was a total of 86 days of operation which com- 

pares with the eight year average of 85.6 days of operation. Total 1995 visitors to the Booth 

was over 3,648 visitors. This produced an average of 43 visitors per day which is slightly 

higher than the seven year average 42.69 persons per day visiting the Booth for directions, 

brochures and maps, tickets to local events and all manner of information. 

This year visitors to the Information Booth came from 44 states and 31 foreign countries. 

The pattern of visitation from the U.S. has been quite constant over the last several years with 

most of our visitors coming from New Hampshire. Next in frequency came visitors from 

Massachusetts followed by Connecticut, New York and New Jersey. As was true last year, the 

largest number of foreign visitors came from England with Canada next and followed by 

Germany, France and Australia. 

The Information Booth has also become a central volunteer ticket agency for the various 

non-profit organizations having events during the summer. 

In addition to managing the Information Booth, the New London Area Chamber of 

Commerce provides telephone information to callers from all over North America and occa- 

sionally foreign countries as well. Over 579 calls were taken at the Information Booth during 

its open hours and by the Information Directors on a 24 hours per day, 7 days per week basis 

throughout the year. These calls answer all sorts of requests for information and also generate 

a large mailing of brochures about the New London area, especially to people seeking reloca- 

tion information. 

The support of the Town, the Chamber of Commerce, the Garden Club and the few good 

people who substituted in the Booth to give us occasional much needed days off is greatly 

appreciated. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

NANCY B. and DONALD F. BENT 

Information Directors 
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NEW LONDON GARDEN CLUB CE 
The New London Garden Club was founded in 1928 by Dr. Anna Littlefield SIN Fa 

with the following purpose in mind: to encourage and aid in all civic beautifica- yy 
tion whether it be on our own or in cooperation with other interested agencies; to @ \uuse> 

protect and perpetuate desirable plants and birds; to promote and encourage a eS 
knowledge and love of gardening, horticulture and flower arranging; to stimulate an interest 
and a desire in all people to work with and for nature. 

Below is a synopsis of the many ways in which the club works towards these purposes. 

CIVIC BEAUTIFICATION 
We have planted and/or maintained plantings at the following locations: 

Bandstand/Sargent Stone; Bucklin Beach; Crockett’s Corner; Elkins Post Office and Beach; 
Hospital Cutting Garden; Daily Flower Care Inside Hospital; K.R.E.S.; K.R.M.S.; Fire 
Station-new landscaping; New London Highway Department; Information Booth; Town 
Parking Lot; Post Office; Town Hall and Offices; Transfer Station; Norris Corner; Old Main 
Street Triangle; Tracy Library - inside and out; Homan’s Corner-plants and weekly mainte- 
nance donated by Moore’s Landscape Gardeners. 

The club receives no funding from the Town for any of these projects, but is very appre- 
ciative of the support it receives from the Town Highway Department in providing compost 
and mulch from the Town’s compost and mulch supply, cleaning up plant debris after our 
“Digger Days” in May and October and moving shrubs during landscaping projects. Thanks 
to Richard and crew!! 

THE GENEVIEVE TEACHOUT MADDEN SCHOLARSHIP 
The club provided 2 scholarships of $1,000 each to two deserving students in the 

Department of Plant Sciences at the University of New Hampshire. 

TRACY MEMORIAL LIBRARY 
With the hope of making gardening and horticulture information available to all, the club 

has donated a subscription to Horticulture Magazine and funds for the purchase of books 
related to gardening, flower arranging and horticulture. Please look for some of these books 
in the Reference area of the library. 

CHRISTMAS WREATH WORKSHOP 
In November, 40 wreaths were made to decorate Town buildings, churches and schools, 

as well as a room decoration for each resident of the Clough Extended Care. 

HOSPITAL DAY BOOTH 
Over $600.00 was raised and donated to the New London Hospital through the sale of 

plants which were donated by club members and local garden centers and nurseries, and the 
sale of flower arrangements made by many of our talented members. 

HAY ESTATE 
Working on the gardens at the Hay Estate has been a wonderful “hands on” learning 

experience for all involved! 

ANTIQUE SHOW 
This annual event is our only fund-raiser. The proceeds enable us to give the scholarship 

to U.N.H. students and allow the club to plant and maintain the Town Gardens. 

The New London Garden Club has 125 active and 40 associate hard working members. 
Programs are held throughout the year, teaching conservation, gardening, flower arranging and 
landscaping. The Club is a member of the Monadnock District, New England Region, New 
Hampshire Federation of Garden Clubs Inc., and the National Council of State Garden Clubs, 
Inc. Donations from the community to help fund any of our projects are greatly appreciated. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
LAURIE LAURIDSEN 
President, 1995 
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THE AUSBON SARGENT LAND PRESERVATION TRUST 

(ASLPT) 

In keeping with its mission to help preserve the rural character of 

the Kearsarge/Sunapee Region by working with local governments s THE s 

and landowners, the ASLPT presented the deed to the 98.8 acre Low 

Plain Natural Area to the Town on January 9, 1995. The land abuts aaa 

existing Town-owned property and the combined 200 acre parcel was SARGENT 
dedicated on May 6, 1995 as the “Esther Currier Wildlife 

Management Area at Low Plain.” Acting as transition title holder, in LAND 
1993 the ASLPT borrowed monies to purchase the Low Plain. With 

lots of help from dedicated members of the New London Se = 

Conservation Commission, the ASLPT coordinated the $310,000 dened Wotan Nosed 

fundraising campaign. Not only were we able to pay off the loan but 

the Town was presented with a $9,000 stewardship endowment for the 

Low Plain. 

PRESERVATION 

Scenic vistas, significant wetlands, extraordinary open spaces, productive farm and forest 

lands, quiet meadows and wildlife habitats are important assets to New London. During 

1995, the ASLPT was fortunate to work with several landowners to permanently protect some 

of these resources. Dr. Lincoln Gordon donated a conservation easement assuring that 20.6 

acres located on the northeast side of Lake Sunapee remains undeveloped. Whit and Polly 

Spaulding’s 2.8 acre gift to the New England Forestry Foundation (NEFF) resulted in another 

ASLPT easement holding. By donating an easement on 40 acres, two special friends of the 

ASLPT helped protect Lyon Brook and the Kezar Lake Watershed. The ASLPT also assisted 

the New London Conservation Commission with the Pelfor Corporation and the Monetta 

Properties, Inc. conservation easements. 

Townspeople wanting to learn more about land protection and the ASLPT are encouraged 

to call 526-6555 or write to PO Box 2040, New London, NH 03257. 

Many thanks to all those who have given generously to the ASLPT. We are most grateful 

for your support! 

Respectfully Submitted, 

DEBORAH STANLEY 

Executive Director 
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM 

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. 

Over the past seventeen years, the Kearsarge Valley Community Action Program has been 

the focal point of social service delivery in this area, providing help when needed to the 

income eligible and elderly, as well as to the community at large. 

As perhaps you are aware, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. 

generates funds through the mobilization of available federal, state and local monies. Support 

for the local Area Center is derived from a combination of federal appropriations and local tax 

dollars. This combination allows the Kearsarge Valley Community Action Program to pro- 

vide a variety of services to the residents of your community, from the development of pro- 

grams which meet local needs, to outreach, referral and direct assistance. 

The staff of the Kearsarge Valley Area Center wish to thank you and the Town of New 

London for your support in the past. With your continued interest, we will be able to continue 

to provide needed services to the members of your community. 

Sincerely, 

BARBARA CHELLIS, Area Director 

Kearsarge Valley Area Center 

LAKE SUNAPEE VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION 
1995 REPORT 

1995 Report of Services People Served in New London 

Home Care 300 

Hospice Care 4 

Bereavement 6 

Clinics: Flu 517 

Clinics: Preventative Health 133 

Clinics: Well Child oH; 

Parent Child Program 23 

Child Care 44 

Thank you for your continued support of VNA services. In 1995, we made more than 

28,500 visits to people in New London, 7 days a week/24 hours a day. 

All of the appropriated funds from the Town of New London have been used to provide 

home care visits, hospice volunteer training and supervision, and well child clinic visits to 

people who had no insurance or inadequate insurance or funds. Other visits were subsidized 

by donations or paid by commercial insurance or from state and federal grant funds. 

Thirty VNA employees; two VNA Trustees, Neil Atkins and Michael Work; one HCH 

Trustee, Mary Teach; one CHS Trustee, Sonja Jacobson and many volunteers live in New 

London. We depend heavily on the selfless support of these volunteers and employees who 

contribute hours to the success of our programs. For them and our Trustees, we are grateful. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

CHERYL BLIK 

President and CEO 
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KEARSARGE AREA 

COA 
COUNCIL ON AGING, INC. 

KEARSARGE AREA COUNCIL ON AGING, INC. 

Keeping in mind our mission to “support and enhance the health, well-being, dignity and 

independence of .... senior adults”, your young COA both grew and expanded again in 1995, 

is now over 1200 members strong. 

COA’s services to its clients remain its main priority — rides, small repairs, telephone 

reassurance calls, friendly visits, Good Day respite day care, office information and referral 

service and the important monthly newsletter. Our number of clients has increased by about 

14% to 165 and the units of service to these seniors by 35% to over 2000. 

Its variety of offerings now include “life enrichment” events such as a monthly luncheon 

and speaker program in area churches, regular quilting sessions, wintertime bridge lessons, 

holiday social events at Christmas time and Valentine’s Day, a “Family Scrapbook” program 

in area libraries, intergenerational involvements and community receptions in each of our nine 

towns. Attendance at events such as these totaled over 1300 in 1995. 

Important happenings in 1995: The Board of Directors updated and revised COA’s by- 

laws. Our newsletter was enlarged to 8 pages, thanks to the support of our business advertis- 

ers. An Advisory Board of area professionals was formed to assist COA in specialized mat- 

ters. Our Vice President was named by Governor Merrill to the N.H. State Committee on 

Aging, having been a N.H. delegate to the White House Conference in May. The Board con- 

ducted a survey of the interest and needs of its members to aid it in planning COA’s future. 

Essential financial support came from different sources: One quarter from our 9 towns, 

one quarter from the townspeople who supported our annual fund drive, one quarter was 

grants from foundations and organizations and the last quarter was from our newsletter adver- 

tisers, our grateful clients and fund raising events, etc. 

Our greatest resource remains our faithful, generous and conscientious corps of talented 

volunteers, over 200 of them. Without them we simply could not “enhance” the lives of our 

senior adults. COA’s Board of Directors is very gratified by the wide spectrum of support it is 

now receiving from every volunteer, from every town, from so many organizations and indi- 

viduals. Your older neighbors are the appreciative beneficiaries. Thank you. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

PHEBE H. DOWNEY 

President 
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NEW LONDON HOSPITAL AUXILIARY 

Responding to the Dynamic of Change 

New London Hospital has responded to the dynamic of change! Both inside and outside, 

workmen are everywhere, and the Auxiliary is behind the changes 100%. 

This year, the Auxiliary pledged $230,000 over a period of five years to fund the construc- 

tion of a new entrance and lobby for the hospital. To date, $65,000 has been donated toward 

this pledge through our fundraising efforts. 

We awarded $9,000 in financial aid this year. Three high school students won scholar- 

ships. One plans to attend Colby-Sawyer College School of Nursing, another to attend 

Russell Sage College in New York to study occupational therapy and another to attend Colby 

College in Maine to study biology. Two hospital employees were also awarded scholarships. 

One is studying at UNH to become a licensed dietitian and the other is working on her bache- 

lor of nursing at Graceland College. Two families that are enrolled in the hospital’s child care 

program were awarded scholarships as well. 

The Auxiliary, 427 members as of June 1995, has the resources to reach out to the commu- 

nity in support of Hospital Day, the Spring and Fall Rummage Sales, Tina Cricenti Golf 

Classic, Easy Aces Bridge Tourney, knitting and sewing projects, Barn pillow rentals, volun- 

teer help in the Clough Center, holiday wrapping and decorating, and myriad volunteer efforts 

within the hospital coordinated by Carolyn Lockhart to the hospital’s volunteer office. 

The rummage sales continue to become bigger and better each year, our most recent sale 

raising $15,000. The hospital benefits from the funds, and the community benefits from the 

economical source of clothing and household goods. 

We await the challenge of an ever increasing membership, provocative monthly programs 

and helping to build a healthy future for our hospital. 

Noreen DeNatale 

President, Auxiliary 

Sally Rockwood 

Treasurer 

1995 Executive Board Deirdre Segerson 

Assistant Treasurer 

New London Hospital Auxiliary 

Officers Directors: 

Jan Amick 

Noreen DeNatale Alice Chandler 

President 

Jean Sutherland 

Joan Clarke 

Bea Dingman 

Carol Frucht 

Vice President Sue King 

Sis Lewis 

Dorothy Ford Carolyn Lockhart 

Recording Secretary Ethel Lotz 

Pam Low 

Doris Stevens Jean McKee 

Corresponding Secretary Betty McSwiney 

Joan Ward 

Evelyn Weber 
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New London Hospital Report 

For Fiscal Years Ending 9/30/95 and 9/30/94 

Net Patient Service Revenue 

Other Revenue 

Total Revenue 

Expenses: 

Salaries & Benefits 

Physician Fees 

Purchased Services 

Supplies & Other Expenses 

Bad Debts 

Depreciation & Interest 

Total Expenses 

Income from Hospital Services 

Net Non-operating Gain 

Net Gain 

Amount of above used for 

equipment purchases, renovations 

& next year’s debt service 

(Long-term debt: $6 million) 

1995 

$ 17,752,287 

355.344 

$ 18,107,631 

$ 9,288,289 

816,563 

709,369 

3,811,620 

GEO S715 

__ 878,861 
$ 16,124,417 

$ 1,983,214 

ats! 495100 

$ 3,732,364 

$ 3,649,648 

Key Statistics 

For Fiscal Years Ending 9/30/95 and 9/30/94 

Acute Care: 

Admissions 

Average Length of Stay 

Patient Days 

Average Occupancy Rate 

Surgical Cases 

Inpatient 

Outpatient 

Emergency Room Visits 

Physical Therapy Treatments 

Lab Tests 

X-Rays 

Mammograms 

CT Scans 

MRI Scans 

Births 

Extended Care: 

Patient Days 

Average Occupancy Rate 

1995 

1,336 

5.7 days 

7,615 

59.6% 

B20 

639 

10,885 

17,772 

103,390 

12,548 

2,360 

597 

64 

170 

ie Pa 

97.8% 

95 

1994 

$ 15,434,666 

283,298 

$ 15,717,964 

$ 8,552,607 

687,046 

T3199 

3,085,770 

591,963 

601,511 

$ 14,270,810 

$ 1,447,154 

$ 1,071,750 

$ 2,518,904 

$ 2,518,904 

1994 

Ltda 

5.9 days 

6,909 

54.1% 

344 

583 

10,234 

18,980 

O2,(01 

10,842 

2,245 

409 

67 

162 

18,980 

96.3% 



1995 ANNUAL REPORT 

UPPER VALLEY LAKE SUNAPEE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

The Upper Valley Lake Sunapee Regional Planning Commission is a voluntary association 

of 31 towns, 4 Vermont and 27 New Hampshire Communities. The Commission is con- 

cerned with the development of comprehensive plans for beneficial and balanced economic, 

environmental and social growth in the Region. It functions as a research, resource, and 

informational agency, and when appropriate, acts to obtain Federal, State and other approvals, 

grants-in-aid, loans and similar assistance for individual member towns and for the Region. 

The Commission provides technical assistance to member communities in the areas of plan- 

ning (land use, transportation, water quality, etc.), mapping, community development, grants- 

manship and grant administration. In addition, regional publications, such as our Regional 

Profile; regional studies, such as our Regional Transportation Plan; and regional projects, such 

as the Lake Sunapee Watershed Management Plan, are undertaken to the benefit of more than 

one community. 

In the past year, services such as our Planning Board training series, and a library which 

features maps, as well as planning resources and US Census data, were available to all of our 

member communities. 

In 1995, our work specifically for the Town of New London included: 

¢ Provided information on subdivision development exactions. 

¢ Assisted the Planning Board by providing a circuit-riding planner to help 

with plan reviews and drafting amendments to local land use controls. 

¢ Supplied aerial photography for Hay Estate project. 

¢ Prepared zoning amendments. 

¢ Developed build out analysis summary and map for 2001 community meeting 

¢ Produced GIS maps of conservation. 

¢ Provided data for revision of Population Chapter of Town Plan. 

Our Commission looks forward to continuing to serve New London in the coming year. 

96 



fae 
Fa ~<— 

KEARSARGE REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT/SAU #65 
190 Main Street * New London, New Hampshire * 03257 ¢ Phone: 603-526-2051 * Fax: 603-526-2145 

KEARSARGE REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL 

1995 New London Graduates 

Last Name 

Beardsley 

Bianchi 

Bowers 

DeClue 

Ferland 

French 

Gay 

Granger 

Jaggard 

Johnson 

Kronewitter 

Lukin 

Messer 

Parrish 

Pearson 

Riedel 

Thorndike 

Vaughn 

Weathers, III 

Weishaupt 

First Name 

David Todd 

Timothy M. 

Allyson Kathleen 

Sarah Josephine 

Jan S. 

Lilyann 

Alan K. 

Heather Marie 

Kenneth G. 

Jessica Kristie 

Erica Lyn 

Igor Vyacheslavovich 

Kate Elizabeth 

Justin Lee 

Adam Briggs 

Helen Elizabeth 

Sarah 

Joseph E. 

Wade Brooks Cushing 

Justin R. 
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MARRIAGES RECORDED IN THE TOWN OF NEW LONDON IN 1995 

DATE AND 
PLACE OF 
OCCURRENCE 

01/01/95 

New London 

01/14/95 

New London 

03/15/95 

New London 

06/03/95 

New London 

06/17/95 

New London 

06/23/95 

Potter Place 

07/01/95 

New London 

07/01/95 

New London 

07/08/95 

New London 

07/15/95 

New London 

07/15/95 

New London 

08/05/95 

New London 

08/05/95 

New London 

08/12/95 
Danbury 

08/12/95 

New London 

08/19/95 

New London 

08/19/95 

NAME OF GROOM 
NAME OF BRIDE 

Richard Morse Underwood 
Jane Brabazon Kennedy 

James William Broughton 
Andrea Dee Daigneault 

Edward John Haseltine 

Doreen Mitchell Taylor 

Jim Melo 
Justin Amy Jaggard 

David Julian Frissora 

Kelly Dorothy Walls 

Frederick David Sheldon 

Lorna Tibbetts Johnson 

James Daniel Ferland 

Kimberlee Dawn Archer 

Jeffrey Francis West 
Daniele Sarkisian 

Stephen Allen Wallace 
Meredith Kerwin Olney 

Daniel Patrick Lorimor 

Elizabeth Margaret Yuskaitis 

Matthew Talbott McMenaman 
Mary Therese Broom 

Michael John DiLorenzo 

Laurie Ann Brown 

Stephen Edward Higgins 
Lisa Ellen McKenna 

James Stanley Bidwell 
Ruth Elizabeth Phelps 

Mark Davis Nassau 
Michelle Lauren Henneberry 

Glenn Bonewald 

Jodi Lynn Dow 

Gerald Ian Moore 

106 

RESIDENCE OF GROOM 
RESIDENCE OF BRIDE 

New London, NH 

Toronto, Canada 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

Provo, UT 

New London, NH 

West Chester, PA 

West Chester, PA 

New London, NH 

Andover, NH 

New London, NH 
Medaryville, IN 

Cary, NC 
Cary, NC 

Kent, CT 

Kent, CT 

Warren, NJ 

New Brunswick, NJ 

Spring Lake, NJ 
New London, NH 

New London, NH 

Arlington, MA 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

New Britain, CT 

New Britain, CT 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

Cambridge, MA 



New London 
DATE AND 
PLACE OF 
OCCURRENCE 

08/26/95 

New London 

09/02/95 

New London 

09/02/95 

New London 

09/09/95 

New London 

09/09/95 

New London 

09/09/95 

New London 

09/16/95 

New London 

09/16/95 

New London 

09/17/95 

New London 

09/23/95 

New London 

09/30/95 

New London 

10/02/95 

New London 

10/07/95 

New London 

10/14/95 

New London 

12/20/95 

New London 

12/30/95 

Manchester 

Rebecca Ann Reynolds 

NAME OF GROOM 
NAME OF BRIDE 

Dragoljub Stevan Rajkovic 
Jane Elizabeth Donahue 

Patrick Andrew Morris 
Elizabeth Haynes Dumas 

Douglas Robert Morrison 
Jane Elizabeth Luby 

Joseph Raymond Havasi 
Lynn Emerson Kistler 

Thomas William Jackmin 

Laura Ann Froehlich 

Brian Herbert Kucharski 

Jennifer Carrier 

Gregory Michael Berger 
Astrid Lorraine Wetherall 

James Patrick Casey 
Elizabeth Jennings Hammond 

Mark Todd Neebe 
Deborah Anne Chapin 

Eugene David Rosenthall 
Linda Ann Dugan 

Andrew R. Jones 

Elizabeth P. Goodrich 

Michael Matthew Way 
Dana Moncrieff Delafield 

Steven Mushkin 

Betsy Hopkins 

James Baxter Sergeant 
Brenda Fredericka White 

Peter Keith Jones 
Penelope Anne Moorhouse 

Edwin Frothingham Edmunds III 
Jennifer Lynn Jette 
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Cambridge, MA 

RESIDENCE OF GROOM 
RESIDENCE OF BRIDE 

New York, NY 

New York, NY 

Haverhill, MA 

Haverhill, MA 

Norwalk, CT 

Norwalk, CT 

Ft. Thomas, KY 

Ft. Thomas, KY 

Cranford, NJ 

Cranford, NJ 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

Newton, MA 

Newton, MA 

Cambridge, MA 
Cambridge, MA 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

Roslindale, MA 

Roslindale, MA 

Paget, Bermuda 
Vero Beach, FL 

Wenham, MA 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

New London, NH 

Llangaffo, Wales 
Llangaffo, Wales 

New London, NH 

Londonderry, NH 



nave A 

méTweo 

CCTV NS, 

*% " r ie! 

ow 4 i 

72 Alswrol 
TD ae 

YA 2omedT A 

_ YA ssmodT fT” Male 

tH noingy) j f 

1A rote: = dg wren Fae 

wd sit — ae N 

raeon) brinch! ‘Teyl Londons, NG 

ivaveH baom eed “i ve. ee 

n Any tage y Pail ; onsen 

niggkont enesilliW “ ae 
re t CheR cy: Pp, i 

a: Wbester, § a ae 
nt Soir 

ifs » Lunenhe Wells (uitiiseoR noAé 

HA aebrot wad | P a preitou ai hodioH a0} _— | 
a os uM “s eo = s oa : t 7 < d! ky (a va 

some Pinndit= Mobnod wn” - - rarreJ Wiane Pees “oq Sobno tae 

a. HM nobaolwe Aegis tauco7M nog men 
RLS ce te London, NE 

see Ecotec ODOT eva “ratio onisnial bisigh Miarvville, 1 

ie, AM none. « yoew> dors zotpel “atl 
=) AM ora” bhoniitisl zgitinast dioclegfl : ia 

AM sabindmaD og Saad bbOT ABM | 6, 
ng AM agbnding 7 Paro tA, derodytt cr 

HV .nobnol wo liadiaoen A bivadl omen re 
HA ohana weal eres ny nA € NORE igh I te 

~~ = she vi gc Ue Gomeewk ro _ 

AIA ,slubnileeA | 2annol as Sah 42 GENE 
’ ; sow Tadtaat( tle ighcoeare tes Lane, 43 DEA “ AM ee biese Ghnme stand London, NEOUS am 

shud tng 1s neconote at gy 
tikeel Jain 2D so A hai w Lowden NEL AF feast YisizanolM robo * 

; " -bwided its em eee Jhon, MA. aay 
oe . 

alae AM ‘iaited nlite oe 7 af, erg 
Mig nid wh yes Edward | liggins anidgoH yen kane. 

Rien, MiKenes | 





hgh: Wa 

See « a 

airae ed 

iA is 



rae a 

7 t 

i 

. 

- 

is 
2 

? 

i 





NEW LONDON-SPRINGFIELD 

WATER SYSTEM PRECINCT 

ANNUAL REPORT 

for the year ending 

31 DECEMBER 1995 

Founded 1925 

Providing water service to customers in the 

Towns of New London and Springfield 
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REPORT TO VOTERS -1995 

The annual meeting of the New London-Springfield Water System Precinct in March of 

1995 saw the election of Kenneth R. Jacques as Water Commissioner for a three year term. 

Also elected on the same ballot were Anna Green as Treasurer, Susan J. Craigie as Clerk and 

Peter Stanley as Moderator, all one year terms. After passing the proposed budget in Article 

Four, there were no other articles requiring funding and the meeting quickly came to a close. 

In 1995 the Board of Commissioners approved fifteen (15) Applications for service. In 

May the Board did receive a petition for annexation to the Precinct. It was the opinion of the 

Board, based on the 1992 Dufresne-Henry report, that the on going construction of the new 

water supply and storage would allow for growth in the foreseeable future, but only in the 

bounds of the Precinct as it currently exists. The Commissioners conveyed their concerns to 

the Joint Board of Selectmen and on that basis they denied the petition. 

A great deal of time and energy has been devoted towards complying with the Safe 

Drinking Water Act. The 1994 Report to Voters told of legal action being carried out and 

completed in the first quarter of 1995. This was done as documents were filed with the courts 

on March 22 and later recorded thus concluding the necessary eminent domain proceedings. 

In January the sixth well was installed and the 5 day pump test was performed on the 

entire well field, the results of which showed that the water is of extremely high quality. 

In August, the Water Main and Pump Station were put out to bid. In September the 

Water Main contract was awarded to United Construction of Newport, NH for the sum of two 

hundred eighty-eight thousand forty-two dollars and fifty cents ($288,042.50). A contract 

award was also given to Weststate Construction of Newbury, New Hampshire for the pump 

station for the sum of three hundred eighty-one thousand dollars ($381,000). 

Included in the pump station contract were the pumps for the individual wells, well 

heads, electrical connections and piping, to be installed in such a manner as to be recessed 

below the ground level and accessed through manhole covers. 

The end of December saw the completion of a majority of the Water Main including 

the tank tie-in. Clean-up, restoration and service connections have been put on hold until 

warmer weather in the spring. The pump station, however is progressing more slowly, but the 

Commissioners hope to see completion in late winter or early spring. 

The three phase power necessary to run the pump station necessitated the setting of 

poles and stringing of wire around the back side of Little Lake Sunapee. This was contracted 

out to PSNH for one hundred twelve thousand ($112,000) and as of December was nearing 

completion. 

In December, the Precinct received the sum of one hundred sixty-four thousand two 

hundred thirty-four dollars ($164,234.00) from the State of New Hampshire for partial reim- 

bursement for monies spent towards complying with the Safe Drinking Water Act, as allowed 

for in RSA 486-A. 

The Board of Commissioners wish to thank the voters for the opportunity to serve the 

Precinct, and look forward to continued service in 1996. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONERS: 

JAMES A. CRICENTI, Chairman 

RICHARD L. BOTT, JR. 

KENNETH R. JACQUES 



NEW LONDON-SPRINGFIELD 
WATER SYSTEM PRECINCT 

PRECINCT WARRANT 

Towns of New London and Springfield, New Hampshire 

To the inhabitants of the New London-Springfield Water System Precinct in the counties of 

Merrimack and Sullivan, respectively, qualified to vote in Precinct affairs. 

You are hereby notified to meet at the Town Hall in New London, New Hampshire, on 

Tuesday, March 19, 1996, at 3:00 p.m. to act on the following subjects: 

(Note: By law the meeting must open before voting starts. Therefore, the meeting and polls 

will open at 3:00 p.m. At 3:15 p.m. the meeting will recess, but the polls will remain open 

until 8:00 p.m. The meeting will reconvene at 7:00 p.m. to act on Articles 2 through 11.) 

ARTICLE 1: To choose all necessary officers for the coming year. 

ARTICLE 2: To hear the reports of officers for the coming year. 

ARTICLE 3: To set the salaries of all officers for the coming year. 

ARTICLE 4: To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the following sums to 

defray Precinct charges for the coming year: 

Approved Proposed 

Budget Budget 

1995 1996 

Salaries, Benefits, Taxes $98,100 $100,919 

Maintenance 10,000 10,000 

Utilities 10,000 15,000 

Supplies 15,000 15,000 

Insurance 12,000 8,400 

Administration 6,000 5,500 

Accounting Expense 2,000 2,000 

Legal Expense 3,000 2,500 

Election Expense 1,000 1,000 

Engineering Review 1,500 1,500 

Equipment (Capitalized) 2,000 2,000 

Contingency 1,000 1,000 

Interest (Short Term) 500 500 

Interest (Long Term) 63,500 51,734 

Principal (Long Term) 95,000 95,000 

Lease Expense 12,500 12,500 

333,100 324,553 

ARTICLE 5: To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of thirty-two 

thousand dollars ($32,000.00) for the purchase of a new four (4) wheel drive one ton dump 

truck with snowplow. Thirty-two thousand dollars ($32,000.00) to be funded from the 

General Fund surplus of December 31, 1995. 



ARTICLE 6: To see if the voters of the Precinct will vote to authorize the Board of 

Commissioners to act as agents for the disposal of surplus equipment of the Precinct in either 

the form of a trade-in value or to sell by public advertised sealed bids under such terms and 

conditions as will serve the best interest of the Precinct. 

ARTICLE 7: To see if the voters of the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of 

seventeen thousand six hundred-thirty four dollars ($17,634.00) for engineering design and 

preparation of plans and specifications of the Fenwood/Pine Hill grid. This amount to be 

funded from the unexpended fund from special articles 91-7 Sixteen thousand six hundred 

forty-eight dollars($16,648.00) and 94-6 Nine hundred eighty-six dollars ($986.00) plus any 

accrued interest. 

ARTICLE 8: To see if the voters of the Precinct will vote to authorize the Board of 

Commissioners to grant and/or rescind to the Sunapee, Ragged-Kearsarge Greenway 

Coalition, permission to build, blaze and maintain a trail through a portion of the land owned 

by the Precinct. 

ARTICLE 9: To see if the voters of the Precinct will vote to accept the provisions of RSA 

31:95-b providing that the Precinct at an annual meeting may adopt an article authorizing 

indefinitely, until specific rescission of such authority, the Commissioners to apply for, accept 

and expend, without further action by the Precinct meeting, unanticipated money from a state 

or federal, or other governmental unit or a private source which becomes available during the 

fiscal year. This authorization will remain in effect until rescinded by a vote of the Precinct 

meeting. 

(Majority vote required). 

ARTICLE 10: To see if voters of the Precinct will vote to authorize the Board of 

Commissioners to accept gifts of personal property, other than cash, to the Precinct for any 

public purposes. This authorization in accordance with RSA 31:95-e shall remain in effect 

until rescinded by a vote of the Precinct meeting. 

(Majority vote required) 

ARTICLE 11: To see if the Precinct will vote to authorize the Commissioners to issue notes 

and incur debt in anticipation of taxes and revenues in order to pay current maintenance and 

operating expenses, as provided in RSA 33:7. 

JAMES A. CRICENTI, Chairman 

RICHARD L. BOTT, JR. 

KENNETH R. JACQUES 

Commissioners 

New London-Springfield 

Water System Precinct 

A true copy of Warrant: Attest 

JAMES A. CRICENTI, Chairman 

RICHARD L. BOTT, JR. 

KENNETH R. JACQUES 

Commissioners 

New London-Springfield 

Water System Precinct 
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Puiire E. GLEASON 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT PA 

To the Commissioners 

New London-Springfield Water System Precinct 

New London, New Hampshire 

I have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of the New London-Springfield 

Water System Precinct as of December 31, 1995 and 1994 and the related statements 

of revenue, expenses and changes in fund balances and cash flows for the year 

then ended, in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review 

Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. All 

information included in these financial statements is the representation of the 

management of the New London-Springfield Water System Precinct. 

A review consists principally of inquiries of Precinct personnel and analytical 

procedures applied to financial data. It is substantially less in scope than an 

audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the objective of 

which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken 

as a whole. Accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. 

Based on my review, with the exception of the matter described in the following 

paragraph, I am not aware of any material modifications that should be made to 

the accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting principles. 

As disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements, generally accepted accounting 

principles require that depreciation be provided on the facility and equipment 

assets. The effect of this departure from generally accepted accounting 

principles on financial position, results of operations, and cash flows have not 

Lis eu eran 

January 18, 1996 

15 Constitution Drive Bedford, New Hampshire 03110 
(603) 471-0880 



NEW LONDON-SPRINGFIELD WATER SYSTEM PRECINCT 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and Cash 

Equivalent (Note 2) 

Accounts Receivable 

Interfund Receivables 

Inventory (Note 1) 

Total Current Assets 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

(Notes 1 and 3) 

Facilities 

Equipment 

Colby Point Project Cost 

Total Plant and Equipment 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 

Accrued Interest Payable 

Bonds Payable (Note 4) 

Interfund Payables 

Total Current Liabilities 

' LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Bonds Payable (Note 4) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND EQUITY 

Appropriated (Note 1) 

Unappropriated (Note 1) 

BALANCE SHEET (WITHOUT AUDIT) 

DECEMBER 31, 1995 AND 1994 

1995 
OPERATING PLANT CAPITAL 

FUNDS FUNDS PROJECT FUNDS 

$209,733 $ 768,402 

2,093 

$ 3,266 
20,001 

231, 827 3,266 768,402 

1,692,072 

pi Ee 

1,199,274 

1,810, 263 1,199,274 

$231, 827 $1,813,529 $1,967,676 

$ 469 $ 56,421 

27,248 

95,000 

—__3.266 

30,983 151,421 

840,000 

30,983 991,421 

17,634 976,255 

183,210 $1,813,529 

200,844 1,813,529 976,255 

$231,827 $1,813,529 $1,967,676 

See Accountant's Review Report 

and Notes to Financial Statement 

Puitir E, Gueason 
"SSF ED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT, P4 

TOTAL 

(memorandum 

only) 

S978 tho 

2,093 

3,266 

20,001 

1,003,495 

1,692,072 
118,191 

1,199,274 

3,009, 537 

$4,013,032 

$ 56,890 
27,248 

95,000 

—___3.266 

182,404 

840,000 

1,022,404 

993,889 
1,996,739 

2,990,628 

$4,013,032 

1994 

TOTAL 

(memorandum 

only) 

$1,265,348 

425 

3,266 

19,179 

1,288,218 

1,688,774 

116,382 
32 A115 

2,537,931 

$3,826,149 

$ 104,220 

3,266 

107,486 

935,000 

1,042,486 

939,330 

1,844,333 

2,783,663 

$3,826,149 



Q
u
e
w
e
j
e
I
s
 

T
e
y
o
O
u
B
U
T
A
 

O23 
Be@ION 

p
u
Y
 

Q
a
z
c
d
e
y
 

M
e
T
A
e
Y
y
 

8, 
}
U
R
Q
U
N
O
D
S
Y
 

S
e
g
 

8
7
9
7
0
6
6
 

'7
c$

 
6e

S 
E
1
8
 

T
S
 

S
S
Z
9
L
6
$
 

€
d
8
°
9
S
 

$ 
pr

e 
0
0
z
s
 

L
O
T
'
S
 

L
O
t
’
S
 

€
9
9
’
E
8
L
'
Z
 

z
z
p
’
s
o
s
’
t
$
 

86
E 

‘S
TE

 
9
P
L
‘
6
9
 

€p
e 

‘9
s 

e
s
e
‘
t
o
z
 

L
S
8
‘
L
S
 

(
€
0
6
‘
2
T
)
 

TO
O‘

 
PP

T 

8
6
7
°
C
 

09
8 

0
F
 

B
e
c
 

e
t
 

e
e
 

a
e
 

F
A
R
 

8
p
9
‘
9
T
$
 

0
0
0
’
8
T
 

867‘E 9TL‘S 867°E per‘ es 

POL‘LT 

9
S
T
‘
S
O
Z
 

L
S
8
°
L
s
 

L
S
6
‘
L
Z
 

66
2 

'L
PT

 
(
S
Z
9
"
L
L
)
$
 

€L
6 

t
t
e
 

TO
T 

6
E
T
 

€Z
6 

t
t
e
 

00
T 

8
E
z
 

0
0
S
2
L
 

in
 

00
S 

72
T 

00
S 

Z
T
 

se
o’

Tt
9 

s
e
o
’
T
9
 

0
0
0
’
%
9
 

6
0
8
‘
T
 

O
V
r
‘
T
 

60
8 

‘T
 

0
0
0
‘
z
 

EO
L 

ec
 

0
0
s
‘
T
 

80
6 

99
6 

80
6 

0
0
0
‘
T
 

€
p
9
'
T
 

€
v
9
’
T
 

00
0’
¢€
 

S
L
L
‘
T
 

S
L
E
'
T
 

0
0
0
’
2
 

€p6‘'? 
9872'S 

€p6 
‘DP 

0
0
0
’
L
 

Chtak 6L¥‘OT TELE 000’2T TPP ‘ST vOT’ST TPP ‘ST 000’ST 

€
T
6
’
d
 

L
E
z
‘
S
 

€
t
6
‘
?
 

0
0
0
‘
0
T
 PL 9 €9S‘S €LT’9 000‘0T 8PT ‘OZ 609°6T 8PT ‘OZ €86‘6T €S6‘9L 9SZ‘EL €S6‘9L LIT‘SL 

6TL‘LIP LS8‘LS 8S0’L9T TLZ‘6SE SLY‘O9T 

S
t
l
.
 

e
e
 

as) 
6
E
T
E
 

PET ‘POT PET ‘POT 

68909 LS8‘Ls $ TES eE cee ‘Zz 00F 

4£
90

‘6
8t

T 
$ 

L
8
r
‘
s
9
o
t
s
 

L
9
0
‘
6
8
T
$
 

S
L
O
’
0
9
T
S
$
 

(
A
T
u
o
 

u
m
p
u
e
i
z
o
u
s
u
)
 

I
W
O
L
O
Y
¥
 

T
W
A
L
O
Y
 

L
a
5
q
a
n
g
 

S6
6T
 

S6
6T
 

S6
6L

 
P6

6L
 

S6
61

 
I
W
L
O
L
 

S
G
N
N
4
 

LI
Na
Wd
In
Nd
g 

Sa
Nn
4a
 

L
o
s
r
o
u
d
 

~
—
—
 

S
a
n
n
a
 

S
N
I
L
w
u
s
d
o
 

aN
Y 

L
N
W
I
d
 

I
W
L
I
d
Y
D
 

S
6
6
T
 

‘
T
E
 
U
S
E
N
R
D
G
d
 

A
A
A
C
N
 

U
W
A
A
 

A
H
L
 

U
o
d
 

(
L
I
G
A
N
W
 
L
N
O
H
L
I
M
)
 

S
H
O
N
W
I
V
G
 

G
N
N
A
 

N
I
 

S
A
H
O
N
W
H
D
 

GNWY 
‘
S
A
S
N
S
d
X
a
 

‘
S
N
N
S
A
R
H
Y
 

A
O
 
L
N
A
W
A
L
Y
L
S
 

D
O
N
I
O
S
Y
d
 

W
A
L
S
A
S
 

U
A
L
Y
M
 
G
I
A
I
A
S
N
I
Y
d
S
-
N
O
G
N
O
T
 

M
S
N
 

S
6
6
T
 

‘
T
E
 

A
E
q
Q
u
e
s
e
q
 

‘
e
o
u
R
T
e
d
 

p
u
n
g
 

(T 
9
3
0
N
)
 

S
u
t
p
u
n
g
 

q
Q
u
e
w
d
t
n
b
g
 

j
o
 

z
9
z
;
s
u
e
I
L
 

S
6
6
T
 

‘Tt 
A
z
e
n
u
v
e
 

‘
e
o
u
e
l
T
e
d
 

p
u
n
g
 

(8807) ewoour 3eN 

seinjtpuedx” TRIOL 

Apnas 

293emM 

6uryutzaq 

eyes 

- 
£ 

“327W 

T66T 

3°0y 

203eM 

Huy~yuz3zqd 

eyes 

- 

g 

*IIW 

PET 

puna [Ter9eusey - 9 *I3AIV PEET 

pung 

Tezeued 

- 

¢§ 

*32¥ 

PEGT 

SeTOTIIAy 

TetToeds 

ZeOeX QuexzznDd ‘sernztpusdxg” 

e
w
o
o
u
r
 

S
u
t
j
e
w
z
e
d
o
 

s
e
r
n
j
z
t
p
u
e
d
x
g
”
 

[
e
I
O
o
L
 

eset] 

3
8
e
7
0
e
R
4
U
r
 

jQuoewdtnbdg” 

M
e
t
A
e
x
 

B
S
u
t
r
e
e
u
a
t
S
5
u
g
 

s
H
u
t
j
e
c
w
 

4
o
u
t
T
o
e
r
z
g
 

Tebeyt Huy Aunosoy 

A
D
u
e
H
h
u
y
T
 
A
u
o
o
 

p
u
e
 

u
o
z
j
z
e
r
z
y
s
f
u
r
u
p
y
 

e
o
u
e
r
m
n
s
u
r
 

s
e
t
r
t
d
d
n
s
 

3
9
u
T
o
e
1
7
g
 SOTITTITIN 

S
s
o
u
r
e
u
e
q
U
T
e
H
n
 

S
3
}
j
y
o
u
e
q
 

p
u
e
 

s
e
x
e
Q
 

[
T
o
O
r
A
e
d
 

s
e
H
5
e
m
 

p
u
e
 

s
o
t
T
z
e
t
T
e
s
 

s
e
s
u
e
d
x
g
 

B
u
t
 
z
e
r
e
d
o
 

e
n
u
e
A
~
e
y
 

T
R
I
0
O
L
 

p
u
n
j
e
x
 

s
o
u
e
x
r
n
s
u
l
L
 

q
u
e
w
e
s
i
n
q
u
t
-
e
u
 

S
a
d
 

H
N
 

q
s
e
r
e
4
U
u
r
L
 

see0qg 
p
u
e
 

s
e
f
z
e
y
d
 

1
9
9
e
M
 

e
n
u
e
s
e
y
 

S
u
t
j
z
e
r
0
8
e
d
o
 

10 



NEW LONDON-SPRINGFIELD WATER SYSTEM PRECINCT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (WITHOUT AUDIT) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1995 

CAPITAL 

OPERATING PLANT PROJECT 

FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Net Income $144,001 $ ayy ie | 

(Increase) in 

Accounts receivable (1,668) 

(Increase) in inventory (822) 

(Decrease) Increase in accounts 

Payable and accrued expense 27,502 (47,584) 

Net Cash Provided by 

Operating Activities 169,013 LO, 23 

Cash Flows from Capital and 

Related Financing Activities 

Acquisitions of plant and equipment (466,499) 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash 169,013 (456,226) 

Cash, December 31, 1994 40,720 1,224,628 

Cash, December 31, 1995 $209,733 $__ 768,402 

See Accountant's Review Report 
and Notes to Financial Statement 

Pup E, Gieason 
CEATIF-ED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT, PA 

1] 

TOTAL 
(memorandum 

only) 

$ 201,858 

(1,668) 
(822) 

(20,082) 

179,286 

(466,499) 

(287, 213) 

1,265,348 

Sao 97/8 0135 



NEW LONDON-SPRINGFIELD WATER SYSTEM PRECINCT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (WITHOUT AUDIT) 

DECEMBER 31, 1995 

NOTE 1 - ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the New London-Springfield Water System Precinct 

(Precinct) have been prepared on the accrual basis. The significant accounting 

policies followed are described below: 

Fund Accounting - To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on 

the use of resources available to the Precinct, the accounts of the Precinct are 

Maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting. This is the 

procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for accounting 

and reporting purposes into funds established according to their nature and 

purposes. Separate accounts are maintained for each fund; however, in the 

accompanying financial statements, funds that have similar characteristics have 

been combined into fund groups. Accordingly, all financial transactions have 

been recorded and reported by each fund group. 

The assets, liabilities and fund balances of the Precinct are reported in self- 

balancing fund groups as follows: 

o Operating Fund - This fund serves as the general operating fund of the 

Precinct. It is used to account for all financial resources except 

those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

o Plant Fund - This group of accounts is used to account for all fixed 

assets of the Precinct other than those being accounted for in the 

Capital Projects Funds. These items are purchased through transfer 

from the Operating Fund. 

o Capital Project Fund - This fund is used to account for financial 

resources to be used for the acquisition and/or construction of the 

Colby Point Project. This fund includes the Safe Drinking Water Act 
Compliance Capital Reserve Fund that is being expended on the Colby 

Point Project. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Precinct considers all short-term, highly liquid 

investments with remaining maturities of three months or less to be cash 

equivalents. 

Depreciation - Plant and equipment is stated at cost. Assets acquired by gift 

or bequest are recorded at the fair market value at the date of transfer. 

Depreciation is not provided for on the assets which is a departure from 

generally accepted accounting principles. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of 

are removed from the accounts at their original cost. 

Inventory - The inventory of supplies are valued at cost. 

Total Columns - The combined Financial Statements include a total column that is 

described as memorandum only. Data in these columns do not present financial 

position, results of operations, or changes in financial position in conformity 

with generally accepted accounting principles. Interfund transactions have not 

been eliminated from the total column of each financial statement. 

See Accountant's Review Report 

Putuip E, GueAson 
CERT ='EO PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT, PA 

12 



NEW LONDON-SPRINGFIELD WATER SYSTEM PRECINCT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (WITHOUT AUDIT) 

DECEMBER 31, 1995 

NOTE 1 - ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Budgetary Data - The Precinct budgets revenue, expenditures, and other sources 

and uses of the Operating Fund. Appropriations in the Operating Fund are charged 

for encumbrances when commitments are made. Fund balances are reserved for 

outstanding encumbrances, which serve as authorizations for expenditures in the 

subsequent year. Budgetary comparisons in the financial statements are presented 

on a modified accrual basis of accounting. All unencumbered budget appropriation 

lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

NOTE 2 - CREDIT RISK 

The Precinct cash was deposited in various institutions during the year. At 

various times the amount on deposit in these institutions exceeded the $100,000 

federally insured limit. 

NOTE 3 - PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Activity for the fixed assets which are capitalized by the Precinct is summarized 

below: 

BALANCE BALANCE 

JANUARY 1, DECEMBER 31, 

1995 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 1995 

Facility $1,688,774 $ 3,298 $1,692,072 

Equipment 116,382 1,809 118,191 
Colby Pt. Project Cost The Pig Me 466,499 1,199,274 

me PE be Ae ke $471,606 S3,0097 557 

Costs incurred for the Colby Point Project by the Capital Project Fund are 

Capitalized. Upon completion of the Project, the total cost will be transferred 

to the Plant and Equipment Funds. 

See Accountant's Review Report 

Puitie E, GLeAson 
CEATIF:ED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT, PA. 
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NEW LONDON-SPRINGFIELD WATER SYSTEM PRECINCT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (WITHOUT AUDIT) 

DECEMBER 31, 1995 

NOTE 4 - BONDS PAYABLE 

On December 20, 1994 the Precinct secured $935,000 from the New Hampshire 

Municipal Bond Bank for the issuance of 1994 Series F Bonds. Interest is payable 

semi-annually. Presented below is a summary of the debt service requirements to 

maturity by year: 

INTEREST 
YEAR RATE PRINCIPAL 

1995 8% 
1996 8% $ 95,000 

L397 8% 95,000 

1998 8% 95,000 

1999 5.4% 95,000 

2000 5.4% 95,000 

2001 5.5% 95,000 

2002 5.625% 95,000 

2003 5.75% 90,000 
2004 5.80% 90,000 
2005 5.90% 90,000 

$935,000 

NOTE 5 - REVENUE FROM STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

The Precinct applied for and received from the State of New Hampshire’s 

Department of Environmental Services a 20% reimbursement for monies spent from 

June, 1986 through December, 1994 toward compliance with the Safe Water Drinking 

Act. 

NOTE 6 - COMMITMENT 

The Precinct reached a settlement with the Cleveland Company, Inc. Over an 

eminent domain action for easements to Colby Point. The Precinct agreed to pay 

as just compensation $25,000 upon delivery of the proper easement and ten annual 

payments of $12,500. At the commencement of the eleventh year and each five 

years thereafter the annual payment will be adjusted based on the average of two 

factors; the Consumer Price Index and the percentage increase in gallonage 

pumped. In no event shall the annual payment be less than $12,500 nor greater 

than 30% of $12,500 for year 11 through 15 and 30% greater of the amount 

calculated in year 11 for years 16 through 20. At the expiration of 20 years, 

the Precinct shall have the option to renew the Agreement every five years up to 

ninety-nine years, upon the same terms and conditions except annual payments 

which shall be renegotiated. 

The Precinct charged the initial $25,000 payment to the cost of the Colby Point 

project and the $12,500 to operations during 1995. 

See Accountant's Review Report 

Puiuie E, GLeASON 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT, PA 
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NOTICES 

DOG OWNERS shall register all dogs over three months of age by April 30. 

¢ Rabies certificates required for registration. 

¢ Civil Forfeiture for not obtaining a dog license is a fine of $25.00 (RSA 466:13). 

¢ Owners are liable for dogs running at large. 

¢ Fees: $6.50 if altered $9.00 not altered 

$2.00 if owner is over 65. 

VEHICLE OWNERS must register their vehicles with the Town Clerk. 

¢ To re-register, owners should bring in their old registrations. 

¢ Renewals, decals, transfers and plates available. 

THOSE OPERATING IN OR NEAR WETLANDS OR WATERWAYS shall file a Dredge 

and Fill Application with the Town Clerk before beginning work. Under RSA:483-A. Fines can 

be assessed for non-compliance. 

PROPERTY OWNERS seeking tax abatement shall apply to the Selectmen’s Office in writing 

within 60 days of the date of the mailing of the final tax bill (RSA 76:16). Forms are available 

at the Selectmen’s Office. 

TOWN HISTORY - MIRROR TO AMERICA 

The office of the Town Clerk has available for sale, during regular business hours, copies of 

Mirror to America, A History of New London, 1900-1950, at a cost of $10.00 per copy. 



TOWN ELECTION OF epee 

TUESDAY, MARCH iil ™ 

WHIPPLE MEMORIAL HAL Il vii NIN 
POLLS CLOSE 7:00 P.M. 

/ 

ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 

KEARSARGE REGIONAL MIDDLE SCHOOL GYMNASIUM 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 13, 1996 

7:00 P.M. 

ARTICLES 2 THROUGH 30 IN THE WARRANT 

WATER SYSTEM PRECINCT 
WHIPPLE MEMORIAL HALL 

NEW LONDON 

Polls Open 3:00 P.M., Tuesday, March 19, 1996 

Polls Close 8:00 P.M. - Meeting Opens 3:00 P.M. 

Meeting will recess at 3:15 P.M. 

Meeting Reconvenes 7:00 P.M. 

THE TOWN OF NEW LONDON 
120 MAIN STREET 

P.O. BOX 240 
NEW LONDON, NH 03257-0242 
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